
 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, JULY 20, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

Anyone wishing to address the city council regarding any topic on this agenda is requested to complete a 

card available at the city clerk's desk.  Speakers are respectfully requested to limit their comments to three 

(3) minutes. 

The city council prohibits the use of cell phones and other electronic devices which emit an audible sound 

during all meetings with the exception of law enforcement, fire and rescue or health care providers on 

call. Persons in violation may be requested to leave the meeting 

AGENDA 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Chaplain Joseph Williams - CCSO 

Roll Call 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

1. City Council approval of Resolution No. R-11-2021, a Resolution relating to collection of Solid 

Waste and Recyclable Material within the Magnolia West Subdivision and related issues, 

including setting a Public Hearing for Final Proposed Solid Waste Service 

Assessments.  Marlena Guthrie 

2. City Council approval of Resolution No. R-10-2021, a Resolution estimating the cost of 

Stormwater Management Services provided by the City, determining certain tax parcels will be 

benefited thereby and related issues, including setting a Public Hearing for Final Proposed 

Stormwater Service Assessments.  Marlena Guthrie 

3. City Council approval of Resolution No. R-15-2021, a resolution authorizing Amendment No. 6 

to the FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement. Contract No. ARV47, 

for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 in the amount of $36,184.00 and authorizing 

the City Manager to execute said Agreement.  Mike Null 

4. City Council approval of Land Dedication for new roadway adjacent to Ruby Street.  Michael 

Daniels 

5. City Council approval of Minutes from 5/18/2021 and 6/1/2021 Regular Sessions.  Erin West 

Page 1



July 20, 2021 Agenda Page 2 of 3 

 

 

6. City Council approval to issue a purchase order in the amount of $79,350.00 to Gresco for the 

purchase of 4/0 copper wire for the Magnolia Point Third Feed Project, Magnolia Point 

Underground Reconductor Project and for Inventory. Scott Schultz 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

7. Establish Tentative Millage Rate for Fiscal Year 2021/2022.  Marlena Guthrie 

8. Lien Reduction Request For 314 Ruby St.  Michael Daniels 

9. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

10. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

Adjournment 

 

 

The City Council meets the first and third Tuesday of each month beginning at 7:00 p.m., unless 

otherwise scheduled.  Meetings are held in City Hall at 321 Walnut Street.  Video and audio 

recordings of the meetings are available in the City Clerk’s Office upon request. 

City may take action on any matter during this meeting, including items that are not set forth within 

this agenda. 

Minutes of the City Council meetings can be obtained from the City Clerk’s office.   The Meetings 

are usually recorded, but are not transcribed verbatim for the minutes.  Persons requiring a 

verbatim transcript may make arrangements with the City Clerk to duplicate the recordings, if 

available, or arrange to have a court reporter present at the meeting.  The cost of duplication and/or 

court reporter will be at the expense of the requesting party. 

Persons who wish to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter 

considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose may need to 

ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and 

evidence upon which the appeal is based.  The City is not responsible if the inhouse recording is 

incomplete for any reason. 

ADA NOTICE 

In accordance with Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 

accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the City Clerk’s office no later than 5:00 

p.m. on the day prior to the meeting. 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Pursuant to Section 286.0114, Florida Statutes, effective October 1, 2013, the public is invited to speak 

on any “proposition” before a board, commission, council, or appointed committee takes official action 

regardless of whether the issue is on the Agenda.  Certain exemptions for emergencies, ministerial acts, 

etc. apply.  This public participation does not affect the right of a person to be heard as otherwise provided 

by law. 

EXPARTE COMMUNICATIONS 

Page 2



July 20, 2021 Agenda Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Oral or written exchanges (sometimes referred to as lobbying or information gathering) between a Council 

Member and others, including staff, where there is a substantive discussion regarding a quasijudicial 

decision by the City Council. The exchanges must be disclosed by the City Council so the public may 

respond to such exchanges before a vote is taken. 

 

Page 3



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 20, 2021 

FROM: Marlena Guthrie, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Consider adoption of Resolution No. R-11-2021, a Resolution relating to collection of 

Solid Waste and Recyclable Material within the Magnolia West Subdivision and related 

issues, including setting a Public Hearing for Final Proposed Solid Waste Service 

Assessments. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The City has previously adopted Ordinance No. O-04-2016, and a copy of such Ordinance is attached 

hereto.  This Assessment Resolution is a required legal step in the process for assessing and collecting 

non-ad valorem solid waste assessments on all non-exempt residential property within the Magnolia 

West subdivision.  This will be our sixth annual assessment. 

Staff recommends setting the Public Hearing for Tuesday, September 7, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The City should be able to collect a very high percentage of our current $228 yearly Solid Waste Service 

Assessment on each residential parcel within Magnolia West.  On an annual basis we estimate $119,700 

will be collected from Magnolia West by this method. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Resolution No. R-11-2021, a Resolution relating to collection of Solid Waste and Recyclable 

Material within the Magnolia West Subdivision and related issues, and setting a Public Hearing for 

Tuesday, September 7, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Page 4

Item #1.



 

RESOLUTION NO. R-11-2021 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 

RELATING TO THE COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE AND 

RECYCLABLE MATERIALS WITHIN THE MAGNOLIA WEST 

ASSESSMENT AREA IN THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

FLORIDA; DESCRIBING THE METHOD OF ASSESSING SOLID WASTE 

COSTS AGAINST RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY; DIRECTING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO PREPARE OR DIRECT THE PREPARATION OF A 

SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENT ROLL; AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC 

HEARING FOR THE PROPOSED SOLID WASTE SERVICE 

ASSESSMENTS AND DIRECTING THE PROVISION OF NOTICE 

THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR COLLECTION; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY.  This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of 

Ordinance No. O-04-2016, as codified in Article VII, Chapter 78 of the Green Cove Springs Code 

of Ordinances (the "Code"), Resolution No. R-09-2016, as amended (the "Initial Assessment 

Resolution"), Resolution No. R-14-2016 (the "Final Assessment Resolution"), Article VIII, 

Section 2(b), Florida Constitution, sections 166.021 and 166.041, Florida Statutes, the City Charter 

of the City of Green Cove Springs, and other applicable provisions of law. 

 

SECTION 2.  PURPOSE AND DEFINITIONS. 

 

(A) This Resolution constitutes the Preliminary Rate Resolution as defined in Section 

78-167 of the Code which initiates the annual process for updating the Solid Waste Assessment 

Roll and directs the reimposition of Solid Waste Assessments for the Fiscal Year beginning 

October 1, 2021. 

(B) All capitalized words and terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the 

meanings set forth in Sections 78-167 and 66-1 of the Code, the Initial Assessment Resolution, as 

amended, and the Final Assessment Resolution. 

(C) Unless the context indicates otherwise, words imparting the singular number, 

include the plural number, and vice versa; the terms "hereof," "hereby," "herein," "hereto," 

"hereunder" and similar terms refer to this Resolution; and the term "hereafter" means after, and 

the term "heretofore" means before, the effective date of this Resolution.  Words of any gender 

include the correlative words of the other genders, unless the sense indicates otherwise. 

 

SECTION 3.  LEGISLATIVE DETERMINATIONS.  The legislative determinations 

embodied in Section 78-164 of the Code, the Initial Assessment Resolution, as amended, and the 

Final Assessment Resolution are affirmed and incorporated herein by reference. 

 

  

Page 5

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 2 of 9 

 

 

 

 SECTION 4.  PROVISION OF SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLABLE MATERIALS 

COLLECTION; DETERMINATION OF SOLID WASTE COST; ESTABLISHMENT OF 

SOLID WASTE SERVICE ASSESSMENTS. 

 

(A) The Solid Waste Cost to be assessed and apportioned among benefited parcels for 

the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021, is $119,700.00.  The approval of this Preliminary Rate 

Resolution determines the amount of the Solid Waste Cost.  The remainder of such Fiscal Year 

budget for Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials collection services, facilities, and programs shall 

be funded from available City revenue other than Solid Waste Service Assessments. 

(B) For the Fiscal Year in which Solid Waste Service Assessments for Solid Waste and 

Recyclable Materials collection services, facilities, and programs are imposed, the Solid Waste 

Cost shall be allocated among all Tax Parcels of Residential Property, based upon each parcels' 

classification as Residential Property and the number of Dwelling Units for such parcels. 

(C) A rate of assessment equal to $228.00 for each Dwelling Unit on each Tax Parcel 

of Residential Property within the Magnolia West Assessment Area for Solid Waste and 

Recyclable Materials collection services, facilities, and programs is hereby approved for the Fiscal 

Year beginning October 1, 2021. 

(D) The rate of the Solid Waste Service Assessments established in this Preliminary 

Rate Resolution shall be the rates applied by the City Manager in the preparation of the updated 

Solid Waste Assessment Roll for the Fiscal Year commencing October 1, 2021, as provided in 

Section 5 of this Preliminary Rate Resolution. 

(E) Upon the imposition of Solid Waste Assessments for Solid Waste and Recyclable 

Materials collection services, facilities, and programs against Residential Property located within 

the Magnolia West Assessment Area, the City shall provide Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials 

collection services, facilities, and programs to such Residential Property. All or any portion of the 

Solid Waste Cost to provide such Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials collection services, 

facilities, and programs shall be funded from proceeds of the Solid Waste Service Assessments. 

The remaining cost, if any, required to provide Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials collection 

services, facilities, and programs shall be funded by legally available City revenues. 

(F) The Magnolia West Assessment Area created in Section 4 of the Initial Assessment 

Resolution, as amended by Section 3 of the Final Assessment Resolution, is hereby confirmed and 

established as the service area for the Fiscal year beginning on October 1, 2021, and it is hereby 

ascertained, determined, and declared each parcel of Residential Property located within the Magnolia 

West Assessment Area will be benefited by the City's provision of Solid Waste and Recyclable 

Materials collection services, facilities, and programs in an amount not less than the Solid Waste 

Service Assessment imposed against such parcel, computed in the manner set forth in this 

Preliminary Rate Resolution 

 

SECTION 5.  SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENT ROLL. 

 

(A) The City Manager is hereby directed to prepare, or direct the preparation of, the 

updated Solid Waste Assessment Roll for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021, in the manner 

provided in Section 78-204 of the Code. 

  

Page 6

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

 

(B) Such updated Solid Waste Assessment Roll shall contain the following:  (1) a 

summary description of all Residential Property within the Magnolia West Assessment Area 

conforming to the description contained on the Tax Roll; (2) the name and address of the Owner 

of each Tax Parcel as shown on the Tax Roll, if available; (3) the number of Dwelling Units 

attributable to the Tax Parcel; and (4) the amount of the Solid Waste Service Assessment for Solid 

Waste and Recyclable Materials collection services, facilities, and programs. 

(C) The updated Solid Waste Assessment Roll shall be open to public inspection.  The 

foregoing shall not be construed to require that the updated Solid Waste Assessment Roll be in 

printed form if the amount of the Solid Waste Service Assessment for each Tax Parcel can be 

determined by use of a computer terminal available to the public. 

(D) It is hereby ascertained, determined, and declared that the foregoing method of 

determining the Solid Waste Service Assessments for Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials 

collection services, facilities, and programs (1) is a fair and reasonable method of apportioning the 

Solid Waste Cost among parcels of Residential Property; and (2) is an equitable and efficient 

mechanism to address payment delinquencies and recover funds advanced for Solid Waste and 

Recyclable Materials collection services, facilities, and programs which are allocable to the 

specific parcels of Residential Property. 

 

SECTION 6.  AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC HEARING.  There is hereby 

established a public hearing to be held at 7:00 p.m. on September 7, 2021, in the City Council 

Chambers, City Hall, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, for the purpose of (1) 

receiving and considering any comments on the Solid Waste Service Assessments from affected 

property owners; and (2) authorizing the imposition of such Solid Waste Service Assessments for 

Solid Waste and Recyclable Materials collection services, facilities, and programs and collection 

on the same bill as ad valorem taxes. 

 

SECTION 7.  NOTICE BY PUBLICATION.  The City Clerk shall publish a notice, as 

required by Section 78-205 of the Code, in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix A.  

Such notice shall be published not later than August 17, 2021 in a newspaper generally circulated 

in the City. 

 

SECTION 8.  NOTICE BY MAIL.   
(A) If required by Section 78-209(f) of the Code, the City Manager shall provide notice 

by first class mail to the Owner of each Tax Parcel of Residential Property, as required by Section 

78-206 of the Code, in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix B.  Such notices shall 

be mailed not later than August 17, 2021.  

(B) For Tax Parcels with exempt "home addresses" pursuant to Section 119.071(4), 

Florida Statutes, the City Manager shall work with the Property Appraiser and/or Tax Collector 

for provision of notice. 

 

SECTION 9.  METHOD OF COLLECTION. The Solid Waste Service Assessments 

shall be collected from all Residential Property within the Magnolia West Assessment Area 

pursuant to the Uniform Assessment Collection Act as provided in Section 78-266 of the Code. 

 

SECTION 10.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Preliminary Rate Resolution shall take effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 

 

Page 7

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 

 

 DONE AND RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA, IN REGULAR SESSION THIS 20TH DAY OF JULY, 2021. 

 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 

 

 

              

      Edward Gaw, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

 

 

       

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

  

Page 8

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

 FORM OF NOTICE TO BE PUBLISHED 
 

  

Page 9

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 

 

To Be Published by August 17, 2021 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING TO IMPOSE AND PROVIDE FOR 

COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE SERVICE NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Green Cove Springs, will conduct a 

public hearing to consider reimposing Solid Waste Service Assessments against certain improved 

residential properties located within the Magnolia West assessment area of the City, as shown below, for 

the fiscal year October 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022 and future fiscal years to fund the cost of solid waste 

and recyclable materials collection services, facilities, and programs, provided to such properties and to 

authorize collection of such assessments on the tax bill. 

 

The hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. on September 7, 2021, in the City Council Chambers, City 

Hall, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, for the purpose of receiving public comment on the 

proposed assessments.  All affected property owners have a right to appear at the hearing and to file written 

objections with the City Council within 20 days of this notice.  If a person decides to appeal any decision 

made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at the hearing, such person will need a 

record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made, including the testimony 

and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.  In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities 

Act, persons needing a special accommodation or an interpreter to participate in this proceeding should 

contact the City Clerk, Erin West, (904) 297-7500, ext. 3307, at least three (3) days prior to the meeting. 

 

The Solid Waste Service Assessments will be generally computed by multiplying the number of 

dwelling units on each parcel by the rate of assessment.  The rate of assessment for the upcoming fiscal 

year and future fiscal years shall be $228.00 for each dwelling unit.  Copies of the updated assessment roll, 

showing the amount of the assessment to be imposed against each parcel of property, and the legal 

documentation relating to the assessments are available for inspection at the office of the City Clerk, located 

at City Hall, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 

 

The Solid Waste Service Assessments will be collected on the ad valorem tax bill to be mailed in 

November 2021, as authorized by section 197.3632, Florida Statutes.  Failure to pay the assessment will 

cause a tax certificate to be issued against the assessed property which may result in a loss of title. 

 

If you have any questions, please contact the City at (904) 297-7500, Monday through Thursday 

between 7:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

Page 10

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 

 

 
 

 

City of Green Cove Springs 

 

Erin West, City Clerk 

321 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, FL  32043 

 

Steve Kennedy, City Manager 

 

  

Page 11

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

FORM OF NOTICE TO BE MAILED 

 

 

  

Page 12

Item #1.



Resolution No. R-11-2021 

Page 9 of 9 

 

 

 

FORM OF NOTICE TO BE MAILED 

 

* * * * * NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER * * * * * 
 

City of Green Cove Springs 

321 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043-3441 

 

 

 

 

Owner Name 

Address  

City, State Zip Tax Parcel #       

 

 

As required by Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, notice is given by the City of Green Cove Springs (the "City"), that 

an annual assessment for solid waste and recyclable materials collection services, facilities, and programs using the 

tax bill collection method, may be levied on your property for the fiscal year October 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022 

and future fiscal years.  The purpose of this assessment is to fund solid waste and recyclable materials collection 

services, facilities, and programs benefiting residential property located within the Magnolia West assessment area of 

the City.  The total annual solid waste assessment revenue to be collected within the City, is estimated to be 

$119,700.00.  The annual solid waste service assessment is based on the number of residential dwelling units contained 

on each parcel of property.  The rate of assessment for the upcoming fiscal year shall be $228.00 for each dwelling 

unit. 

 

The total number of residential dwelling units on the above parcel is    . 

 

The maximum solid waste service assessment for the above parcel is $_____ for Fiscal Year 2021-22 and future fiscal 

years. 

 

A public hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. on September 7, 2021, in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 321 Walnut 

Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, for the purpose of receiving public comment on the proposed assessments.  You 

and all other affected property owners have a right to appear at the hearing and to file written objections with the City 

Council within 20 days of this notice.  If you decide to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to 

any matter considered at the hearing, you will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim 

record is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.  In accordance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation or an interpreter to participate in this 

proceeding should contact the City Clerk, Erin West, at least three (3) days prior to the meeting. 

 

Unless proper steps are initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction to secure relief within 20 days from the date of 

City Council action at the above hearing (including the method of apportionment, the rate of assessment and the 

imposition of assessments), such action shall be the final adjudication of the issues presented. 

 

Copies of the Master Service Assessment Ordinance, the Initial Assessment Resolution, the Final Assessment 

Resolution, the Preliminary Rate Resolution, and the updated assessment roll are available for inspection at the City 

Clerk's office, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 

 

Both the solid waste service non-ad valorem assessment amount shown on this notice and the ad valorem taxes for the 

above parcel will be collected on the ad valorem tax bill mailed in November 2021.  Failure to pay the assessment 

will cause a tax certificate to be issued against the property which may result in a loss of title. 

 

If there is a mistake on this notice, it will be corrected.  If you have any questions regarding your solid waste service 

assessment, please contact the City at (904) 297-7500, Monday through Thursday between 7:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. 

 

* * * * * THIS IS NOT A BILL * * * * * 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

NOTICE OF HEARING TO IMPOSE AND PROVIDE 

FOR COLLECTION OF SOLID WASTE SERVICE 

NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS 

NOTICE DATE:  AUGUST 17, 2021 

Page 13

Item #1.



Page 14

Item #1.



Page 15

Item #1.



Page 16

Item #1.



Page 17

Item #1.



Page 18

Item #1.



Page 19

Item #1.



Page 20

Item #1.



Page 21

Item #1.



Page 22

Item #1.



Page 23

Item #1.



Page 24

Item #1.



Page 25

Item #1.



Page 26

Item #1.



Page 27

Item #1.



Page 28

Item #1.



Page 29

Item #1.



Page 30

Item #1.



Page 31

Item #1.



Page 32

Item #1.



Page 33

Item #1.



Page 34

Item #1.



Page 35

Item #1.



Page 36

Item #1.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 20, 2021 

FROM: Marlena Guthrie, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Consider adoption of Resolution No. R-10-2021, a Resolution estimating the cost of 

Stormwater Management Services provided by the City, determining certain tax parcels 

will be benefited thereby and related issues, including setting a Public Hearing for Final 

Proposed Stormwater Service Assessments. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The City has previously adopted Ordinance No. O-04-2016, and a copy of such Ordinance is attached 

hereto.  This Assessment Resolution is a required legal step in the process for assessing and collecting 

non-ad valorem stormwater assessments against all non-exempt real property tax parcels within the City.  

This will be our sixth annual assessment. 

Staff recommends setting the Public Hearing for Tuesday, September 7, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The City should be able to collect a very high percentage of our current $42.00 yearly Stormwater Base 

Service Cost Assessment. On an annual basis we estimate $161,742 will be collected citywide by this 

method. The City should also be able to collect a very high percentage of the Stormwater Usage Service 

Cost estimated to be $410,625 on an annual basis. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Resolution No. R-10-2021, a Resolution estimating the cost of Stormwater Management 

Services provided by the City, determining certain tax parcels will be benefited thereby and related 

issues, and setting a Public Hearing for Tuesday, September 7, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

Page 37

Item #2.



 

RESOLUTION NO. R-10-2021 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, 

RELATING TO THE PROVISIONS OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES; ESTIMATING THE COST OF STORMWATER 

MANAGEMENT SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE CITY'S 

STORMWATER UTILITY; DESCRIBING THE METHOD OF CHARGING 

THE COST OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGAINST 

ASSESSED PROPERTY; DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO 

PREPARE OR DIRECT THE PREPARATION OF A STORMWATER 

SERVICE ASSESSMENT ROLL; AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING 

FOR THE PROPOSED STORMWATER SERVICE ASSESSMENTS AND 

DIRECTING THE PROVISION OF NOTICE THEREOF; PROVIDING 

FOR COLLECTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

 SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY.  This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of 

Ordinance No. O-04-2016, as codified in Article VII, Chapter 78 of the Green Cove Springs Code 

of Ordinances (the "Code"), Resolution No. R-12-2020 (the "Amended and Restated Initial 

Assessment Resolution"), Resolution No. R-15-2020 (the "Amended and Restated Final 

Assessment Resolution"), Article VIII, Section 2(b), Florida Constitution, sections 166.021 and 

166.041, Florida Statutes, the City Charter of the City of Green Cove Springs, and other applicable 

provisions of law. 

 

 SECTION 2.  PURPOSE AND DEFINITIONS. 

 

(A) This Resolution constitutes the Preliminary Rate Resolution as defined in 

Section 78-167 of the Code which initiates the annual process for updating the Stormwater 

Assessment Roll and directs the reimposition of Stormwater Service Assessments for the Fiscal 

Year beginning October 1, 2021. 

(B) All capitalized words and terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings 

set forth in Sections 78-167 and 70-4 of the Code, the Amended and Restated Initial Assessment 

Resolution, and the Amended and Restated Final Assessment Resolution. 

(C) Unless the context indicates otherwise, words imparting the singular number, include 

the plural number, and vice versa; and the term "hereafter" means after, and the term "heretofore" 

means before, the effective date of this resolution.  Words of any gender include the correlative 

words of the other genders, unless the sense indicates otherwise. 

 

 SECTION 3.  LEGISLATIVE DETERMINATIONS. The legislative determinations 

embodied in the Section 78-164 of the Code, the Amended and Restated Initial Assessment 

Resolution, and the Amended and Restated Final Assessment Resolution are affirmed and 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

Page 38

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 2 of 10 

 

 

 

 SECTION 4.  PROVISION OF STORMWATER MANAGEMENT SERVICES; 

DETERMINATION OF STORMWATER SERVICE COST; ESTABLISHMENT OF 

STORMWATER SERVICE ASSESSMENTS. 

 

(A) The Stormwater Base Service Cost to be assessed and apportioned among benefited Tax 

Parcels of Assessed Property within the Stormwater Service Area for the Fiscal Year beginning 

October 1, 2021 is $161,742.00.  For each Fiscal Year in which Stormwater Assessments for 

Stormwater Management Services are imposed, the Stormwater Base Service Cost shall be 

allocated among all Tax Parcels of Assessed Property within the Stormwater Service Area equally 

on a per Tax Parcel basis. As provided in Section 70-7 of the Stormwater Ordinance, a rate of 

assessment equal to $42.00 for each Tax Parcel to fund the Stormwater Base Service Cost is hereby 

approved for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021. 

(B) The Stormwater Usage Service Cost to be assessed and apportioned among benefited 

Tax Parcels of Developed Property within the Stormwater Service Area for the Fiscal Year beginning 

October 1, 2021, is $410,625.00.  For each Fiscal Year in which Stormwater Assessments for 

Stormwater Management Services are imposed, the Stormwater Usage Service Cost shall be 

allocated among all Tax Parcels of Developed Property within the Stormwater Service at a rate of 

assessment based upon the special benefit accruing to such Developed Property from the City's 

provision of Stormwater Management Services, measured by the number of ESUs attributable to 

each Tax Parcel, as determined in accordance with Section 70-9 of the Stormwater Ordinance after 

the application of any Mitigation Credits as determined in accordance with the City’s Mitigation 

Credit Policy adopted in Resolution R-10-2020. As provided in Section 70-8 of the Stormwater 

Ordinance, a rate of assessment equal to $125.00 for each Net ESU to fund the Stormwater Usage 

Service Cost is hereby approved for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021.  

(C) The Stormwater Assessment will be computed for each Tax Parcel within the 

Stormwater Service Area by (1) multiplying the number of Net ESUs attributable each Tax Parcel 

of Developed Property by the per Net ESU rate of $125.00 to fund that Tax Parcel’s portion of the 

Stormwater Usage Service Cost and then (2) adding the applicable $42.00 rate per Tax Parcel to 

fund that Tax Parcel’s portion of the Stormwater Base Service Cost.  

(D) The rate of the Stormwater Service Assessments established in this Preliminary Rate 

Resolution shall be the rates applied by the City Manager in the preparation of the updated Stormwater 

Assessment Roll for the Fiscal Year commencing October 1, 2021, as provided in Section 5 of this 

Preliminary Rate Resolution. 

(E) Upon the imposition of Stormwater Service Assessments for Stormwater 

Management Services against Tax Parcels located within the Stormwater Service Area, the 

Stormwater Utility created in Section 70-5 of the Code shall provide Stormwater Management 

Services to such property. All or any portion of the Stormwater Service Cost to provide such 

Stormwater Management Services shall be funded from proceeds of the Stormwater Service 

Assessments. The remaining cost, if any, required to provide Stormwater Management Services 

shall be funded by legally available City revenues. 

(F) The Stormwater Service Area created in Section 4 of the Amended and Restated 

Initial Assessment Resolution is hereby confirmed and established as the service area for the Fiscal 

year beginning on October 1, 2021, and it is hereby ascertained, determined, and declared each 

Tax Parcel of Assessed Property located within the Stormwater Service Area will be benefited by 

the City's provision of Stormwater Management Services in an amount not less than the 

Page 39

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 3 of 10 

 

 

 

Stormwater Service Assessment imposed against such parcel, computed in the manner set forth in 

this Preliminary Rate Resolution. 

 

 SECTION 5.  STORMWATER ASSESSMENT ROLL. 

 

(A) The City Manager is hereby directed to prepare, or direct the preparation of, the 

updated Stormwater Assessment Roll for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2021, in the 

manner provided in Section 78-204 of the Code. 

(B) Such updated Stormwater Assessment Roll shall contain the following: (1) a 

summary description of all Assessed Property within the Stormwater Service Area conforming to 

the description contained on the Tax Roll; (2) the name and address of the Owner of each Tax 

Parcel as shown on the Tax Roll, if available; (3) the number of Assessment Units attributable to 

the Tax Parcel; and (4) the amount of the Stormwater Service Assessment for Stormwater 

Management Services. 

(C) The updated Stormwater Assessment Roll shall be open to public inspection. The 

foregoing shall not be construed to require that the Stormwater Assessment Roll be in printed form if 

the amount of the Stormwater Service Assessment for each Tax Parcel can be determined by use of 

computer terminal available to the public. 

(D) It is hereby ascertained, determined, and declared that the foregoing method of 

determining the Stormwater Service Assessments for Stormwater Management Services (1) is a fair 

and reasonable method of apportioning the Stormwater Service Cost among parcels of Assessed 

Property; and (2) is an equitable and efficient mechanism to address payment delinquencies and 

recover funds advanced for Stormwater Management Services which are allocable to specific parcels 

of Assessed Property. 

 

 SECTION 6.  AUTHORIZATION OF PUBLIC HEARING.  There is hereby 

established a public hearing to be held at 7:00 p.m. on September 7, 2021, in the City Council 

Chambers, City Hall, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, for the purpose of (1) 

receiving and considering any comments on the Stormwater Service Assessments from affected 

property owners; and (2) authorizing the imposition of such Stormwater Service Assessments for 

Stormwater Management Services and collection on the same bill as ad valorem taxes. 

 

 SECTION 7.  NOTICE BY PUBLICATION.  The City Clerk shall publish a notice, 

as required by Section 78-205 of the Code, in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix A.  

Such notice shall be published not later than August 17, 2021 in a newspaper generally circulated 

in the City. 

 

 SECTION 8.  NOTICE BY MAIL.   

(A) If required by Section 78-209(f) of the Code, the City Manager shall provide notice 

by first class mail to the Owner of each Tax Parcel of Assessed Property, as required by Section 

78-206 of the Code, in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix B.  Such notices shall 

be mailed not later than August 17, 2021. 

(B) For Tax Parcels with exempt "home addresses" pursuant to Chapter 2019-12, Laws 

of Florida, which amended Section 119.071(4), Florida Statutes, the City Manager shall work with 

the Property Appraiser and/or Tax Collector for provision of notice. 

 
Page 40

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 4 of 10 

 

 

 

SECTION 9. METHOD OF COLLECTION. The Stormwater Service Assessments 

shall be collected from all Assessed Property pursuant to the Uniform Assessment Collection Act 

as provided in Section 78-266 of the Code. 

 

 SECTION 10.  EFFECTIVE DATE. This Preliminary Rate Resolution shall take effect 

immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 DONE AND RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN 
COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, IN REGULAR SESSION THIS 20th DAY OF JULY, 2021. 
 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
              
      Edward Gaw, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Erin West, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

 

 

 

       

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

  

Page 41

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 5 of 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

FORM OF NOTICE TO BE PUBLISHED 
 

  

Page 42

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 6 of 10 

 

 

 

To Be Published by August 17, 2021 

 

NOTICE OF HEARING TO IMPOSE AND PROVIDE FOR  

COLLECTION OF STORMWATER SERVICE NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS 

 
Notice is hereby given that the City Council of the City of Green Cove Springs, Florida, will 

conduct a public hearing to consider reimposing Stormwater Service Assessments within the entire 

incorporated area of the City, as shown below, for fiscal year October 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022 and 

future fiscal years to fund the cost of providing Stormwater Management Services to such properties and 

to authorize collection of such assessments on the tax bill. 

 

The hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. on September 7, 2021, in the City Council Chambers, City 

Hall, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, for the purpose of receiving public comment on the 

proposed assessments. All affected property owners have a right to appear at the hearing and to file written 

objections with the City Council within 20 days of this notice. If a person decides to appeal any decision 

made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at the hearing, such person will need a 

record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim record is made, including the testimony 

and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities 

Act, persons needing a special accommodation or an interpreter to participate in this proceeding should 

contact the City Clerk, Erin West, (904) 297-7500, ext. 3307, at least three (3) days prior to the meeting. 

 

The Stormwater Assessment contains two, separate components.  The first component – the Base 

Charge -- will fund the City’s baseline, citywide management, operations and maintenance services for 

the stormwater management system and will be generally allocated equally among all Tax Parcels 

within the City. The annual Stormwater Assessment rate for the Base Charge for the upcoming Fiscal 

Year and future fiscal years will be $42.00 for each Tax Parcel.   

 

The second component – the Usage Charge -- will fund the City’s additional Stormwater 

Management Services provided to developed property.  These stormwater management services are 

necessitated by the existence of Impervious Area that impedes or restricts infiltration of rainfall into the 

soil, which then increases the need for City services and facilities to convey, retain, and treat increased 

volume of Stormwater runoff from developed property and the Usage Charge is based upon the estimated 

amount of stormwater runoff generated by impervious surface on the Developed Property, as measured 

by the number of Net ESUs assigned to each parcel of property. The City has determined that a typical 

single-family residence in the Stormwater Service Area includes 3,000 square feet of impervious surface, 

which is defined as the "equivalent stormwater unit value" or "ESU Value."  Generally, the number of 

ESUs were calculated individually for each parcel of developed property by dividing the impervious 

surface area by 3,000 square feet.  Credit for privately maintained Stormwater management facilities and 

other factors affecting the quantity or quality of Stormwater runoff has also been applied, resulting in an 

assignment of Net ESUs. The annual Stormwater Assessment rate for the Usage Charge for the 

upcoming Fiscal Year and future fiscal years will be $125.00 for each Net ESU.   

 

Copies of the Master Service Assessment Ordinance, the Amended and Restated Initial Assessment 

Resolution, the Amended and Restated Final Assessment Resolution, the Preliminary Rate Resolution, and 

the updated assessment roll are available for inspection at the office of the City Clerk, located at City Hall, 

321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 

 

The Stormwater Assessments will be collected on the ad valorem tax bill to be mailed in 

November 2021, as authorized by section 197.3632, Florida Statutes.  Failure to pay the assessment will 

Page 43

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 7 of 10 

 

 

 

cause a tax certificate to be issued against the assessed property which may result in a loss of title. 

 

If you have any questions, please contact the City at (904) 297-7500, Monday through Thursday, 

between 7:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. 

 

 
 

 

 

City of Green Cove Springs 

 

Erin West, City Clerk 

321 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, FL  32043 

 

Steve Kennedy, City Manager 

 

  

Page 44

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 8 of 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

 

FORM OF NOTICE TO BE MAILED 
 

  

Page 45

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 9 of 10 

 

 

 

FORM OF NOTICE TO BE MAILED 
 

* * * * * NOTICE TO PROPERTY OWNER * * * * * 
 

City of Green Cove Springs 

321 Walnut Street 

Green Cove Springs, FL 32043-3441 

 

 

 

 

Owner Name 

Address  

City, State Zip Tax Parcel #       
  
 

As required by Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, notice is given by the City of Green Cove Springs (the 

"City"), that an annual assessment for Stormwater management services using the tax bill collection method, may be 

levied on your property for the fiscal year October 1, 2021 – September 30, 2022 and future fiscal years.  The purpose 

of this assessment is to fund stormwater management services benefiting all property located within the City.  The 

Stormwater Assessment contains two, separate components.  The first component – the Base Charge -- will fund the 

City’s baseline, citywide management, operations and maintenance services for the stormwater management 

system and will be generally allocated equally among all Tax Parcels within the City. The total annual assessment 

revenue to be collected within the City is estimated to be $161,742 for the stormwater base service cost. 

 

The second component – the Usage Charge -- will fund the City’s additional Stormwater Management 

Services provided to developed property.  The total annual assessment revenue to be collected within the City 

is estimated to be $410,625 for the stormwater usage service cost. These stormwater management services are 

necessitated by the existence of Impervious Area that impedes or restricts infiltration of rainfall into the soil, which 

then increases the need for City services and facilities to convey, retain, and treat increased volume of Stormwater 

runoff from developed property and the Usage Charge is based upon the estimated amount of stormwater runoff 

generated by impervious surface on the Developed Property, as measured by the number of Net ESUs assigned to 

each parcel of property. The City has determined that a typical single-family residence in the Stormwater Service 

Area includes 3,000 square feet of impervious surface, which is defined as the "equivalent stormwater unit value" 

or "ESU Value."  Generally, the number of ESUs were calculated individually for each parcel of developed property 

by dividing the impervious surface area by 3,000 square feet.  Credit for privately maintained Stormwater 

management facilities and other factors affecting the quantity or quality of Stormwater runoff has also been applied, 

resulting in an assignment of Net ESUs.  

The total number of Tax Parcels associated with the above parcel is . 

The total number of Net ESUs assigned to the above parcel is ___________. 

 

The maximum stormwater assessment for the above parcel for the Base Charge is $42 for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and future 

fiscal years. 

 

The maximum stormwater assessment of the above parcel for the Usage Charge is $____ for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and 

future fiscal years. 

 

The TOTAL MAXIMUM STORMWATER ASSESSMENT for the above parcel is $____ for Fiscal Year 2020-21 and 

future fiscal years. 

 

A public hearing will be held at 7:00 p.m. on September 7, 2021, in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 321 Walnut 

Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida, for the purpose of receiving public comment on the proposed assessments.  You 

and all other affected property owners have a right to appear at the hearing and to file written objections with the City 

Council within 20 days of this notice.  If you decide to appeal any decision made by the City Council with respect to 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

NOTICE OF HEARING TO IMPOSE AND PROVIDE 

FOR COLLECTION OF STORMWATER SERVICE 

NON-AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS 

NOTICE DATE: AUGUST 17, 2021 

Page 46

Item #2.



Resolution No. R-10-2021 

Page 10 of 10 

 

 

 

any matter considered at the hearing, you will need a record of the proceedings and may need to ensure that a verbatim 

record is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be made.  In accordance with the 

Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation or an interpreter to participate in this 

proceeding should contact the City Clerk, Erin West, at least three (3) days prior to the meeting. 
 

Unless proper steps are initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction to secure relief within 20 days from the date of City 

Council action at the above hearing (including the method of apportionment, the rate of assessment and the imposition of 

assessments), such action shall be the final adjudication of the issues presented. 
 

Copies of the Master Service Assessment Ordinance, the Amended and Restated Initial Assessment Resolution, the 

Amended and Restated Final Assessment Resolution, the Preliminary Rate Resolution, and the updated assessment roll 

are available for inspection at the City Clerk’s Office, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida. 
 

Both the stormwater service non-ad valorem assessment amount shown on this notice and the ad valorem taxes for the above 

parcel will be collected on the ad valorem tax bill mailed in November 2021.  Failure to pay the assessment will cause a 

tax certificate to be issued against the property which may result in a loss of title. 
 

If there is a mistake on this notice, it will be corrected. If you have any questions regarding your stormwater service 

assessment, please contact the City at (904) 297-7500, Monday through Thursday, between 7:00 a.m. and 5:30 p.m. 

 

***THIS IS NOT A BILL*** 

Page 47

Item #2.



Page 48

Item #2.



Page 49

Item #2.



Page 50

Item #2.



Page 51

Item #2.



Page 52

Item #2.



Page 53

Item #2.



Page 54

Item #2.



Page 55

Item #2.



Page 56

Item #2.



Page 57

Item #2.



Page 58

Item #2.



Page 59

Item #2.



Page 60

Item #2.



Page 61

Item #2.



Page 62

Item #2.



Page 63

Item #2.



Page 64

Item #2.



Page 65

Item #2.



Page 66

Item #2.



Page 67

Item #2.



Page 68

Item #2.



Page 69

Item #2.



Page 70

Item #2.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 6, 2021 

FROM: Erin West, City Clerk 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Resolution No. R-15-2021, a resolution authorizing Amendment 

No. 6 to the FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement. Contract 

No. ARV47, for the period of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 in the amount of 

$36,184.00 and authorizing the City Manager to execute said Agreement.  Mike Null 
 

BACKGROUND 

FDOT pays the City a yearly maintenance fee to maintain the traffic light 

signals in the Green Cove Springs area. The City, through the Interlocal Agreement with Clay 

County, provides for the Clay County Signal Maintenance Department to maintain the traffic 

light signals. The City issues purchase orders as necessary as per the Clay County Signal 

Maintenance Department. This Agreement is effective July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2035 with 

Amendments submitted annually. 

Attached is the e-mail from FDOT requesting approval of Amendment No. 6 to the Traffic 

Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement, Contract No. ARV47, for period of July 1, 

2021 through June 30, 2022 in the amount of $36,184.00. This represents an increase of $976 

over FY 20-21. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funds are deposited to A/R Account No. 001-3439100 

RECOMMENDATION 

City Council approval of Resolution No. R-15-2021, a resolution authorizing Amendment No. 6 to the 

FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance, and Compensation Agreement. Contract No. ARV47, for the period 

of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 in the amount of $36,184.00 and authorizing the City Manager to 

execute said Agreement 
 

Page 71

Item #3.



Intersection
Location

Traffic
Signals

(TS)

Traffic Signal -
Interconnected

& monitored
(IMTS)

Intersection
Control
Beacon
(ICB)

Pedestrian
Flashing
Beacon
(PFB)

Emergency
Fire Dept.

Signal
(FDS)

Speed 
Activated
Warning 
Display

(SAWD) or 
Blank

Out Sign (BOS)

Traffic 
Warning
Beacon 
(TWB)

Travel
Time

Detector
(TTD)

Uninterruptible
Power 

Supplies
(UPS)

Connected 
and 

Automated 
Vehicle 
Devices 
(CAVD)

Compensation
Amount (using

Unit Rates 
from

Exhibit B)

SR15, (US17) at
LAMONT ST.

$360 $360

SR15, (US17) at
MID BLOCK PED 

BETWEEN CENTER & 
GUM

$360 $360

SR15, (US17) at
GUM ST.

$3,577 $3,577

SR15, (US17) at
CENTER ST.

$3,577 $3,577

SR15, (US17) at
WALNUT ST.

$3,577 $3,577

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 750-010-22
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS

06/16TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

Reimbursement for Maintenance and Operation

Exhibit A
Compensation for Maintaining Traffic Signals and Devices for FY 
2022

Effective Date: from 07/01/2021 to 06/30/2022
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Page 72

Item #3.



Intersection
Location

Traffic
Signals

(TS)

Traffic Signal -
Interconnected

& monitored
(IMTS)

Intersection
Control
Beacon
(ICB)

Pedestrian
Flashing
Beacon
(PFB)

Emergency
Fire Dept.

Signal
(FDS)

Speed 
Activated
Warning 
Display

(SAWD) or 
Blank

Out Sign (BOS)

Traffic 
Warning
Beacon 
(TWB)

Travel
Time

Detector
(TTD)

Uninterruptible
Power 

Supplies
(UPS)

Connected 
and 

Automated 
Vehicle 
Devices 
(CAVD)

Compensation
Amount (using

Unit Rates 
from

Exhibit B)

SR15, (US17) at
SR16 WEST ( FERRIS 

ST.)

$3,577 $116 $3,693

SR15, (US17) at
SR16 EAST

$3,577 $116 $3,693

SR15, (US17) ORANGE 
AVE. at

HARBOR RD.

$3,577 $360 $116 $4,053

SR15, (US17) ORANGE 
AVE. at

HOUSTON ST.

$3,577 $116 $3,693

SR16 at
REYNOLDS ST.

$897 $897

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 750-010-22
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS

06/16TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

Reimbursement for Maintenance and Operation

Exhibit A
Compensation for Maintaining Traffic Signals and Devices for FY 
2022

Effective Date: from 07/01/2021 to 06/30/2022
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Page 73

Item #3.



Intersection
Location

Traffic
Signals

(TS)

Traffic Signal -
Interconnected

& monitored
(IMTS)

Intersection
Control
Beacon
(ICB)

Pedestrian
Flashing
Beacon
(PFB)

Emergency
Fire Dept.

Signal
(FDS)

Speed 
Activated
Warning 
Display

(SAWD) or 
Blank

Out Sign (BOS)

Traffic 
Warning
Beacon 
(TWB)

Travel
Time

Detector
(TTD)

Uninterruptible
Power 

Supplies
(UPS)

Connected 
and 

Automated 
Vehicle 
Devices 
(CAVD)

Compensation
Amount (using

Unit Rates 
from

Exhibit B)

SR16 at
WEST ST.

$717 $717

SR16 at
OAKRIDGE AVE.

$717 $717

SR16 WEST at
WEST ST.

$3,577 $3,577

SR16 WEST at
OAKRIDGE AVE.

$3,577 $116 $3,693

Total Lump Sum Amount* $36,184.00

* Amount paid shall be the Total Lump Sum (minus any retainage or forfeiture).

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 750-010-22
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS

06/16TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

Reimbursement for Maintenance and Operation

Exhibit A
Compensation for Maintaining Traffic Signals and Devices for FY 
2022

Effective Date: from 07/01/2021 to 06/30/2022
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGSCITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Page 74

Item #3.



I certify that the above Traffic Signals and Devices will be maintained and operated in accordance with the requirements of the Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement. 
For satisfactory completion of all services detailed in this Agreement for this time period, the Department will pay the Maintaining Agency a Total Lump Sum (minus any retainage or 
forfeiture) of $36,184.00

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Maintaining Agency                                                                          Date                                                        District Traffic Operations Engineer                                               Date

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 750-010-22
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS

06/16TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

Reimbursement for Maintenance and Operation

Exhibit A
Compensation for Maintaining Traffic Signals and Devices for FY 
2022

Effective Date: from 07/01/2021 to 06/30/2022
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

Page 75

Item #3.



 STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

AMENDMENT TO THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE  
AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT 

750-010-24 
TRAFFIC OPERATIONS 

 06/16 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 

CONTRACT NO. ARV47 
FINANCIAL PROJECT NO. 41353018811 

F.E.I.D. NO. F596000328002 
AMENDMENT NO.  

 
THIS AMENDMENT TO THE TRAFFIC SIGNAL AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is made 

and entered into on this ____________ day of ____________ ____________, by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA, 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (“Department”), an agency of the State of Florida, and City of Greencove Springs, 
(“Maintaining Agency”). 

 
RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Department and the Maintaining Agency on _____________________ entered into a Traffic 

Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement (“Agreement”). 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Agreement on the terms and conditions set forth herein. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants in this Amendment, the Agreement is amended as 
follows:  
 

1. Exhibit A is amended, superseded and replaced in its entirety with the new Exhibit A that is attached to this 
Amendment. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Amendment on the day, month and year set forth 
above. 
 
 

 
 
 

City of Greencove Springs , Florida 
STATE OF FLORIDA  
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

(Maintaining Agency)   
    
By:   By:  
 (Authorized Signature)   (Authorized Signature) 

Print/Type Name:        Print/Type Name: James Hannigan 

Title:        Title: District Traffic Operations Engineer 

   Legal Review:  
           

Page 76

Item #3.



RESOLUTION NO. R-15-2021 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREEN COVE 

SPRINGS, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING AMENDMENT NO. 6 TO THE 

TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE AND COMPENSATION AGREEMENT, 

CONTRACT NO. ARV47, WITH THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Florida Department of Transportation desires 

to renew the Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement setting forth 

the various rights, duties and responsibilities for the City maintenance and operation 

of traffic signals or signal systems on the State Highway System. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. The City Council of the City of Green Cove Springs hereby authorizes 

Amendment No. 6 of the Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement, 

Contract No. ARV47, between the City and the Florida Department of Transportation 

dated July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. 

 

SECTION 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute said Amendment 

to the Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement, Contract No. 

ARV47, attached hereto and marked Exhibit “A”. 

 

DONE AND RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA, IN REGULAR SESSION THIS 20TH 

DAY OF JULY, 2021. 
 

      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

 

 

              

      Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 

 

       

Erin West, City Clerk 
 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 

 

 

       

L. J. Arnold, III, City Attorney 

Page 77

Item #3.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: July 20, 2021 

FROM: Michael Daniels 

SUBJECT: City Council approval of Land Dedication for new roadway adjacent to Ruby Street.  

Michael Daniels 
 

BACKGROUND 

In November 2020, Clay County Habitat submitted an application for a lot split for parcel #017053-000-

00 which is located at 314 Ruby Street.  During the review of the request, City staff determined that, due 

to the narrowness of the existing roadway on Ruby Street, that in order to be able to complete a lot split, 

the parcel would need to be split parallel to Ruby Street  (see attached surveys) and a new roadway 

would need to be constructed on the east side of Ruby Street, from the existing asphalt driveway and 

extending 60' to the east to provide road frontage for the two newly created lots.  As a result, the 

applicant is requesting to dedicate the northern portion of the subject property to the City for the creation 

of a new road.  The new roadway plans and construction have been completed by the applicant and 

approved by the City.   The cost of the roadway improvements paid by the applicant are $8,027.50.  The 

applicant also has provided a 3-year maintenance bond in accordance with City Surety requirements.  In 

addition, the applicant will convey to the City the property by warranty deed which will be recorded in 

the Official County Records.  The roadway and the conveyance shall be completed prior to issuance of a 

Certificate of Occupancy for the new single-family houses. 

The City Attorney noted a correction to be made on the maintenance bond regarding the date.  This 

correction will be completed prior to issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Due to the small size of the roadway, the ongoing maintenance costs to the City will be minimal. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approval of Land Dedication for new Roadway adjacent to Ruby Street 
 

Page 78

Item #4.



Page 79

Item #4.



Page 80

Item #4.



Page 81

Item #4.



::lJ
\$;,
r0
Q

5
fiz
$
fi:

F :,ril.l;, : W Ak :, t-t o :,; :, 2 6, ; :1 6 : r614E 5fl ' ; : 
1 5 $5: ; 3 1;, I ; 

:.;,' .ia6.,.htr:.' d- i'a,ni.,:g
Page 82

Item #4.



Fo: Ihr C& d Gto"i Ca"' $ttEl 
oqb of tnor.c$ AFr 25' f$t

Scdr l' ' Sd

,& \3,

o

?
a>_-

p
q

$*$fu\

tr,W

v

t&n
*%+Q *-Z

t.u@q,_r,s-";#>{i:

z4
B^8.

"t?X'?

,ftv \ -,.&

u**'rA
le*Jat il g'"..'- \,

a\
e

Qe*t'il (v pv \,

,** ti\ri,- fu:a
*lq _-\ 9"""

&a-*,*#fu
4\-@-@r'ob
'$o $\ B* #ffi"*,"*,"-s'Ed Se.{l SafagScruorrt

ffi ffi*.""*"*"
fP- M Pb.

\ ;re.u. irlgld tlrrprtlracglr
\ P5. fldEeok
\ R/!t rodad-)t4
\ l+{ ttibef r.t D..\ i'w l'$rvd\"

,Y"#lHdEffi&
ncaEod etm;or au nqPPr'

Fffi*;+mm*

M
HARoLg r. ElLAllD
Ucetsa Nr- t,$ 5lA

eu,hE, t A96O6IATE6, lf{O'
*ot*lc,lamt Ax\el.q?s C l"laPP€reffiI'
oxpiwe paer" n€RtD4???Tg

S.eS'., r,Bl

gENTFAL N TE9

'#ffi*ffiffifi$ffigr*t*.d$lDdfrolzH-Pw h.t'
iu+rrra,t*ir llg Pf Rt4 gmffiIiMts*jF-ffi*"*-'ryr-es#sffiffituffi

o s*$crfrk0.stseU

E *' ffi,"-'
*,l.t;g,r/t

#?qialJ-ltui,d'aw

-tuT.Lrltill.tL-o=:-c;*{ctN-EE- -,-.-*

4s
rfio
tJ
st*
s
IL

Flald Fook t'lP. 1b6,41 -I?b Flr- 4122&#.
Page 83

Item #4.



puty Clerk BASKINJ

Tax deed file number:395912014
Parcel ID number: 380626-017053_000_00

DR_s06 R. 04/16
Rute t2D-16.002

Florida Adminsitrative Code
Btr.04/15

I?:,Tii:::':,:T:.':1 ry$ 11y.a,o" 3 gth dav -of May. 20 I 4 was nred -ollector oIclay county, Florida' A,, application has b""r, *ud* folt issuance of a tax deed. The applicant has paid orredeemed all other taxes or tax certificates on the land as required by law. The notice of sale, including the costand expenses of this sale, has been published as_required by1aw. Nt person entitled to do so has appeared toredeem the land- on the 18th day of October, zoil,the land was offered for sale. It was sold to: CLA,COUI{TY HABITAT FOR }IUMANITY INC address Po Box 240, ORANGE PARK, FL 32a67-A240,who was the highest bidder and has paid the sum of the bid as required by law.

The lands described below, including any inherited property, buildings, fixtures and improvements of any kindand description, situated in this County and State.

Description of lands:

Clay County, Florida

PT OF PALMER FERRIS TRACT AS REC O R
320

On this 30th day of October, 2017 , in Clay County,
Hundred Three Dollars and Fourteen Cents Only,

1368 pG 410 & 1841 pG 49 El'tPT REC O R 2042 pG

Florida, for the sum of ($6,203.14),
the amount paid as required by law.

TARA S. GREEN
Clerk of the Circuit Court
CIay County, Florida

Six Thousan{-Two

*r, frilmnaL Aaaly-*
Deborah Thacker, Deputy Clerk

On this 30th day of October, 2017, before me personally appeared, Deborah Thacker, Deputy Clerk of the
Circr-rit Courl in and for the State and County of Clay known to me to be the person descrited in, and who
executed the foregoing instnrment, and acknowledged the execution of this instrument to be his own fiee act
and deed for the use and purposes therein mentioned.

'V/itness 
my hand and office seal date aforesaid.

Prepared by: Tax Deed Clerk
P.O. Box 698 / 825 N Orange Ave
Green Cove Springs, FL 32A43

CLAUDIA DECURNOU
Commission # FF 213498
Expires March 24.2019
Boodrc Tm Ircy FCr hr!fltr{ !00.!8i.l0lg

TAX NEHM

CIay County, Florida

Page 84

Item #4.



11t6t2020 qpubtic.net - clay county Property Appraiser's offrce - Report 38-06-26-017053-000-00

ffi Clry County Property Appraiser's Office

38-O6-26-0170s3-O00-O0
314 RUBY St
Green Cove Springs 32043
PT OF PALMER FERRIS TRACT AS REC O R 4025 PG 450
(Note: *The Description above is not to be used on legal documents.)

Vacant Residential (000O)

38t6/26
Tax DistO02
16.7246
o.339
N

Parcel Summary

Parcel ID
Location Address

BriefTax Description*

Property Use Code
Sec/Twp/Rng
Tax District
Millage Rate
Acreage
Homestead

Map

Owner lnformation
CLAY COUNTY HABITAT FOR
HUMANITYINC
PO BOX 240
ORAN G E PARK FL 320,67 -O24O

Land lnformation
Land Use

Vacant Reidential {0000}

Sales

Number of Units

1.00

UnitType
Residential Lot

Land Type

Site

Frontage

0

Depth

0

Sale Date

7A/30/2077

Deed Deed
Book Page

4025 450

Sale
Price

$6,3oo

lnstrumenl

Tax Deed

Warranty
Deed

Warranty
Deed

Personal
Rep Deed

1841" 49

1368 470

7294 406

Sale Qualification
Unqualified -
U NQUAUFEDERAVSTATVLOCAL
GOV

Qualified

Qualified

Qualified

Grantor Grantee

CLAY COUNry CLERK CLAY COUNTY HABITAT FOR
OFCOURT HUMANIry INC

WEISBRODTDONNIE WALKERLINDAG
R5R

BEVERLY MEEKS DONNIE WEISBRODT

ESTOF HAROLD MEEKS BEVERLY B

wtLsoN

Vacant or
lmproved

lmproved

lmproved

lmproved

lmproved

u78/2000 $100

t2/70/7990 $10,OOO

u2s/L990 $100

hftps://qpublic.schneidercorp.comlApplication.aspx?ApplD=830&LayerlD=15008&PageTypelD=4&PagelD=6756&Q=224640774&KeyValue=38-06-26-... 1/2

Page 85

Item #4.



Page 86

Item #4.



Page 87

Item #4.



Developer Agreement 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION") 
 

 

1 
 

     
 

DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY 

CONSTRUCTION") 
 
 

                      
      

            
         

 
         

            

      

 

 

 
   

 
 

      
 

 
 

   

  

 
            

       

 
       

    
 

 
      

  
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises 

contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1.  RECITALS 

All representation above are true and correct and incorporated herein. 

 

 

2. ROADWAY SPECIFICATIONS 

a. Roadway shall connect to the existing asphalt driveway as shown on Exhibit A, 

Boundary Survey and extend for 60’. 

meeting the specifications as set forth in Paragraph 2 below.
  WHEREAS, the Developer shall be required to construct the city owned roadway 

hereafter.
owned roadway  meeting  the  specifications as set  forth in Paragraph  2 within  12  months 

  WHEREAS, the Developer shall be required to d e s i g n   a n d construct the city 

mutual understandings and undertakings regarding the property development; and
  WHEREAS, the parties wish to enter into this Agreement setting forth their 

forth in Chapter 117, Article II, Division 3 of the City Code; and
the  permitting  of  two  single  family  homes  meeting  the  density  control  requirements  as  set 

  WHEREAS, the dedication and construction of the proposed roadway will allow for 

and
06-26-017053-000-00 be dedicated to the City for the construction of a city owned roadway;

  WHEREAS, Developer desires that the Property, which is a portion of parcel #38- 

017053-000-00 for the development of two single family homes; and
  WHEREAS, the Developer has submitted an application to split parcel # 38-06-26- 

06-26-017053-000-00; and

  WHEREAS, the DEVELOPER is developing certain land within the CITY on parcel # 38- 

(hereinafter referred to as "Property"); and

Florida, and described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference

  WHEREAS, Developer owns lands located in Green Cove Springs, Clay County, 

Springs,a Florida municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City".
Profit Corporation, hereinafter referred to as "Developer(s)", and the City of Green Cove 
March, 2021, by and between, Clay County Habitat for Humanity Inc., a Florida Not For 

  THIS DEVELOPER AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 2nd day of 

Page 88

Item #4.



Developer Agreement 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION") 
 

 

2 
 

b. Roadway shall be a minimum of 12’ wide with 6” thick fiber with 3,000 PSI 

Concrete. 

c. A minimum of 4 pipe bollards shall be placed at the end of the roadway. 

d. The roadway shall be constructed within 12 months of the approval of the 

Developer’s Agreement. 

e. Guarantees and Sureties as set forth in Chapter 101, Article II, Division 5, 

Subdivision V shall be provided.  

 

3. IMPROVEMENT COMPLETION 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary the DEVELOPER shall complete all 

improvements to the roadway to the written satisfaction of the CITY.  Furthermore, the 

DEVELOPER shall convey the subject roadway to the City by warranty deed with title 

insurance for an amount of no less than $10,000 within 15 days of final acceptance by 

the CITY.  The CITY shall not approve a Certification of Occupancy until the CITY 

approves all roadway infrastructure plans and construction is completed.   

 

4. STANDARDS OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICE  

 The DEVELOPER agrees to provide and perform the construction set forth in this 

AGREEMENT, or any Amendments hereto, in accordance with generally accepted 

standards of construction practice and in accordance with the laws, statutes, ordinances, 

codes, rules, regulations and policies, of any governmental agencies which may 

regulate, or have jurisdiction over the services to be performed by the DEVELOPER, 

pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

 

5. INDEMNIFICATION –  

a. The Developer shall be and agrees to be and remain liable for any and all 

damages, losses, and expenses incurred by the CITY caused by the errors, 

omissions, negligence, or delay(s) of the DEVELOPER or by any 

subcontractors engaged by the DEVELOPER in providing, performing and 

furnishing work and materials pursuant to this AGREEMENT. 

b. The DEVELOPER shall be liable and agrees to be liable for and shall 

indemnify, defend and hold the CITY harmless for any and all claims, suits, 

judgments or damages, losses and expenses, including court costs, expert 

witness and professional consultation services, and attorneys’ fees arising out of 

the DEVELOPERS errors, omissions, negligence, or delay(s), or those of any 

subcontractors engaged by the DEVELOPER during the providing, performing 

and furnishing of services, work and materials pursuant to this AGREEMENT 

and any and all Amendments thereto. 

 

6. APPLICABLE LAW/VENUE/JURY TRIAL WAIVED 

This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the ordinances, the laws, rules, and 

regulations of the State of Florida, procedural and substantive and applicable federal 

statutes, rules, and regulations. The venue for any and all litigation, arising under this 

AGREEMENT, shall lie in Clay County, Florida. Each party hereby knowingly waives 

the right to trial by jury of any suits arising hereunder. 

 

7. WAIVER OF BREACH 

Waiver by the CITY of a breach of any provision of this AGREEMENT, by the 

DEVELOPER, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any other breach and shall not be 

Page 89

Item #4.



Developer Agreement 
("LAND DEDICATION FOR ROADWAY CONSTRUCTION") 
 

 

3 
 

construed to be a modification of the terms of this AGREEMENT. 

 

8. DUTIES AND OBLIGATIONS IMPOSED ON THE DEVELOPER 

The duties and obligations imposed on the DEVELOPER, and the rights and remedies 

available hereunder shall be in addition to, and not a limitation on, any such duties and 

obligations or rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law or statute. 

 

9. ATTORNEY FEES 

The prevailing party in any litigation arising hereunder shall be entitled to recover 

reasonable attorney fees and costs from the other party. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto, by their duly authorized officials have 

executed this AGREEMENT on the dates shown below. 

 

DEVELOPER:      CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, 

Clay County Habitat for Humanity, Inc.   FLORIDA 

 

By:________________________________   By:_________________________________ 

Carolyn Edwards, Executive Director   B. Van Royal, Mayor 

 

Its_________________________________            

 

___________________________________             Attest:_______________________________ 

Witness as to DEVELOPER                  Erin West, City Clerk 

 

Date: _________________________________   Approved as to form only: 

 

       ____________________________________

    

L. J. Arnold III, City Attorney 

 

Date:_______________________________ 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90

Item #4.



EXHIBIT A

Page 91

Item #4.



Page 92

Item #4.



Page 93

Item #4.



Page 94

Item #4.



Page 95

Item #4.



Page 96

Item #4.



Page 97

Item #4.



Page 98

Item #4.



Page 99

Item #4.



Page 100

Item #4.



Page 101

Item #4.



Page 102

Item #4.



Page 103

Item #4.



Page 104

Item #4.



 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, MAY 18, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag - Pastor Bob Brown - Cornerstone Church 

Roll Call 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Van Royal, Vice Mayor Ed Gaw, Council Member 

Connie Butler, Council Member Matt Johnson, Council Member Steven Kelley 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney, Steve Kennedy, City Manager, Mike 

Null, Assistant City Manager, Erin West, City Clerk 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

No comments 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

Motion to approve the Military Service Day and National Safe Boating Week proclamations. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member Johnson, 

Council Member Kelley 

 

1. Proclamation - Military Service Day 

Council Member Johnson reads the proclamation. 

 

2. Proclamation - National Safe Boating Week - U.S. Coast Guard Auxiliary 

Vice Mayor Gaw reads the proclamation and present it to the U.S. Coast Guard Auxiliary. 

 

3. Recognize Jen Halter, GCSJR Principal 

Mayor Royal speaks and presents Jen Halter with a certificate from the City of Green Cove 

Springs congratulating her on being the State of Florida Principal of the Year. 

PRESENTATIONS 

4. City Council election of a Mayor and Vice Mayor to serve from May 18, 2021 through May 16, 

2022. Erin West 

 

Motion to nominate Ed Gaw as Mayor. 

Motion made by Council Member Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Royal, Vice Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Johnson, Council Member Kelley 

 

Page 105

Item #5.



May 18, 2021 Minutes Page 2 of 6 

 

 

Motion to nominate Matt Johnson as Vice Mayor. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Royal. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Council Member Butler, Council Member Johnson, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

5. Second and Final Reading of Ordinance No. O-07-2021, Future Land Use Amendment from 

Commercial High Intensity to Central Business District for property located at 200-206 S. Orange 

Avenue  Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-07-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents and explains the Ordinance. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

The applicant, Janis Fleet with Fleet and Associates speaks to the Council. 

Following no further public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve for the second and final reading of Ordinance O-07-2021, to amend the 

Future Land Use of the property described therein from Commercial High Intensity to 

Central Business District. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

6. Second and Final Reading of Ordinance No. O-08-2021, Rezoning from Gateway Corridor 

Commercial to Central Business District for property located at 200-206 S. Orange 

Avenue  Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-08-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels advises the presentation for Item 5 and Item 6 

were the same. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Following no public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Motion to approve the second and final reading of Ordinance O-08-2021, to amend the 

Zoning of the property described therein from Gateway Corridor Commercial to Central 

Business District 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

7. First Reading of Ordinance No. O-02-2021, Review of an Annexation request for the Ayrshire 

Development for the Gustafson’s Cattle, Inc. approximately 560.52 acres on CR 15 A (a portion 

of parcel #: 016515-000-00) Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-08-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels advises his presentation is for Items 7, 8, and 9. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Page 106

Item #5.



May 18, 2021 Minutes Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Ellen Smith with Rogers Tower speaks on behalf of DR Horton, speaks and presents about the 

annexation for the Ayrshire Development for the Gustafson’s Cattle, Inc. 

John Gislason a representative with DR Horton speaks concerning the annexation and 

development. 

Grayson Jones 1355 Blackmon Rd, GCS speaks concerning the project and previous 

developments by DR Horton. 

Kim Candelaria 3070 Gosman Rd, GCS questions how this development will change the traffic 

flow. 

Rajesh Chindalur a representative with DR Horton speaks to the Council concerning the traffic 

issue. 

Jim Morrissey 1327 Riveria Dr., GCS questions the 561 acres and what happens to the future 

acreage.  Mr. Morrissey also questions the bridge being finished and the traffic. 

Doug Johnson 5345 Deer Island Rd, GCS thought the Gustafson’s Farm was 5,000 acres but this 

is only 561 acres. 

Following no further public comment, Mayor Gaw closes the public hearing. 

Council discussion followed. 

Motion to approve for form and legality the first reading of Ordinance O-02-2021, to annex 

the property described therein. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

8. First Reading of Ordinance No. O-03-2021, Review of a Future Land Use Map Amendment 

request from Rural Fringe / Industrial (County) to Residential Low Density (RLD) for the 

Ayrshire Development for Gustafson’s Cattle, Inc.  approximately 560.52 acres on CR 15 A (a 

portion of parcel #: 016515-000-00) Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-03-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents and explains the ordinance. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Following no public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve for form and legality first reading of Ordinance O-03-2021, and 

approve transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) a request 

to amend the Future Land Use Designation from Rural Fringe (County) and Industrial 

(County) to Residential Low Density for a portion of parcel 016515-000-00. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

9. First Reading of Ordinance No. O-04-2021, Review of a Future Land Use Site Specific Text 

Policy request for the Ayrshire Development for Gustafson’s Cattle, Inc.  approximately 560.52 

acres on CR 15 A (related to Future Land Use Map Amendment, Ordinance O-03-2021) Michael 

Daniels 

Page 107

Item #5.



May 18, 2021 Minutes Page 4 of 6 

 

 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-04-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels speaks and explains the ordinance. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Following no public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve for form and legality first reading of Ordinance O-04-2021 and approve 

transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) a Site-Specific 

Policy Amendment regarding development restrictions for the proposed Future Land Use 

Amendment in Ordinance No. O-03-2021. 

Motion made by Council Member Butler, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

10. First Reading as to Form Only of Ordinance O-12-2021 amending Green Cove Springs Electric 

Net Metering Service Rate Schedule. Mike Null 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-12-2021 by title. 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null speaks and presents on solar net metering. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Grayson Jones 1355 Blackmon Rd., GCS, speaks concerning Net Metering and advises he has 

spoken to several companies and the contract with FMPA is not in Green Cove’s favor. 

Ellen Castle 10418 New Berlin Rd., Jacksonville, is an employee of A1A Solar Contracting.  Ms. 

Castle explains her concerns with the Net Metering rate schedule. 

Kim Candelaria 3070 Gosman Rd., GCS, speaks concerning the Net Metering rate schedule. 

Tara Prieto 2064 Belle Grove Trce., Fleming Island, CEO of Alternate Energy Technologies 

speaks concerning the Net Metering rate schedule. 

Following no public comment, the public hearing is closed. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve Ordinance O-12-2021 as to form only upon first reading and set June 1, 

2021 at 7:00PM as the second and final hearing for adoption. 

Motion made by Council Member Royal, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member Kelley, Council 

Member Royal 

Abstain: Mayor Gaw 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 11 through 18. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

Page 108

Item #5.



May 18, 2021 Minutes Page 5 of 6 

 

 

11. City Council approval for final payment for JJ Mares Basic Recruit Program.  Derek Asdot 

12. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #1, 

in the amount of $35,000.00 for construction of the Advanced Wastewater Treatment Plant 

(AWWTP), as part of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), State 

Revolving Fund (SRF), Harbor Road Water Reclamation Facility (WRF) Expansion, Phase 2, 

SRF Agreement No. WW1000420 in the total amount of $15,426,644.33.  Scott Schultz 

13. City Council approval of, and authorization for the Mayor to execute, Disbursement Request #13 

in the amount of $116,670.00 to the Design Loan Agreement for the Florida Department of 

Environmental Protection (FDEP), Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan 

Application DW 100102 for $356,800.00, for the design of capital improvements to the City's 

Water System.  Scott Schultz 

14. City Council approval to award rehabilitation of the Scioto Court Gravity Sewer in the amount of 

$96,000.00 to Jeff’s Excavating and approve service to be excepted from informal and formal 

bidding processes in the best interest of the City.  With the 5% local contractor discount Jeff’s is 

the lowest estimate.  Scott Schultz 

15. City Council approval of Mittauer Invoice # 21207 in the amount of $25,500.00 for surveying, 

topographic analysis, permitting, design and construction management for water and sewer force 

main extension on County Road 209 South for a total Task Order amount of $49,500.00.  Scott 

Schultz 

16. City Council approval of Pay Application #1 in the amount of $94,547.33 to General 

Underground for water and sewer force main extension on County Road 209 South.  Scott 

Schultz 

17. City Council approval of Pay Request #7 (Final) in the amount of $120,706.95 to General 

Underground for Bid Award LC 2020-06, Reynolds Water System Improvements in the amount 

of $685,724.00 (Base Bid), and Alternate #1 (water & sewer extension to MOBRO) in the 

amount of $314,275.00 for a total amount of $1,000,449.00.  Scott Schultz 

18. City Council approval of Pay Application #4 to Terry’s Electric for Chapman Substation 

Construction Improvements in the amount of $106,594.30, leaving a balance of $421,864.30 in 

contract number LC 2020-17 in the total amount of $879,086. Andy Yeager 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

19. City Council discussion and possible approval of the recommended projects for the American 

Rescue Plan Act Funds.  Steve Kennedy 

 City Manager, Steve Kennedy advises staff put together a list of projects Council to review and 

suggest projects to be completed.  Council will review and provide feedback on the projects. 

20. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

The City Manager and City Attorney made comments regarding various city activities, events, 

operations, and projects. 

21. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

Page 109

Item #5.



May 18, 2021 Minutes Page 6 of 6 

 

 

The City Council made comments regarding various city activities, events, operations, and 

projects. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the meeting was adjourned at 10:15 

p.m. 

 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 

 Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 

  

Attest:  

 
 

Erin West, City Clerk  

 

Page 110

Item #5.



 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS  

 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR SESSION 

321 WALNUT STREET, GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TUESDAY, JUNE 01, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Council Member Johnson 

Roll Call 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Ed Gaw, Vice Mayor Matt Johnson, Council Member 

Connie Butler, Council Member Steven Kelley, Council Member Van Royal 

STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: L.J. Arnold, III, City Attorney, Steve Kennedy, City Manager, Mike 

Null, Assistant City Manager, Erin West, City Clerk 

Mayor to call on members of the audience wishing to address the Council on matters not on the Agenda. 

Mr. Bob Page speaks concerning the Net Metering for Public Hearing #2. 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION 

1. Recognition - Van Royal - Mayor May 19, 2020 - May 18, 2021  Ed Gaw 

Mayor Gaw speaks and presents Council Member Royal with his Mayor plaque. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

2. Second and Final Reading of Ordinance O-12-2021 amending Green Cove Springs Electric Net 

Metering Service Rate Schedule. Mike Null 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-12-2021 by title. 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null speaks and gives a brief history on the Ordinance. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Mike Burrell 514 Highland Ave. GCS questions if he will be grandfathered in due to just signing 

the contract to have solar added. 

Grayson Jones 1355 Blackmon Rd. GCS speaks concerning the Net Metering and the 2% bonus 

being given. 

Following no further comment, Mayor Gaw closes the public hearing. 

Mayor Gaw speaks concerning Mr. Page and Mr. Greyson's comments. 

Motion to adopt Ordinance No. O-12-2021 on second and final reading. 

Motion made by Council Member Royal, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member Kelley, Council 

Member Royal 

Voting Abstaining: Mayor Gaw 

 

Page 111

Item #5.



June 01, 2021 Minutes Page 2 of 6 

 

 

3. First Reading of Ordinance O-09-2021, a Future Land Use Amendment from Residential 

Medium Density (RMD) to Residential Professional Office (RPO) for property located at 3 West 

St. Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-09-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents on the Ordinance. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Following no comment, Mayor Gaw closes the public hearing. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve first reading of Ordinance No. O-09-2021 for form and legality only, 

amending the future land use from Residential Medium Density to Residential Professional 

Office for property located at 3 West St. 

Motion made by Vice Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

4. First Reading of Ordinance O-10-2021, a Rezoning from R-2 to Residential Professional Office 

(RPO) for property located at 3 West St. Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-10-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents on the Ordinance. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Following no comment, Mayor Gaw closes the public hearing. 

Motion to approve first reading of Ordinance No. O-10-2021 for form and legality only, 

amending the official zoning map from R-2 to Residential Professional Office for property 

located at 3 West St. 
Motion made by Vice Mayor Johnson, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

5. First Reading of O-11-2021, an Ordinance which Proposes Revisions to the Residential 

Riverfront (RRF) Zoning District. Michael Daniels 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-11-2021 by title. 

Development Services Director, Michael Daniels presents on the Ordinance. 

Mayor Gaw opens the public hearing. 

Following no comment, Mayor Gaw closes the public hearing. 

Council discussion follows. 

 

Motion to approve first reading of Ordinance No. O-11-2021 for form and legality only, 

amending City Code Chapter 117, Article II, Division 5. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley 

Voting Abstaining: Council Member Royal 

 

Page 112

Item #5.



June 01, 2021 Minutes Page 3 of 6 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All matters under the consent agenda are considered to be routine by the city council and will be enacted 

by one motion in the form listed below. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If discussion 

is desired, that item will be removed from the consent agenda and will be considered separately. Backup 

documentation and staff recommendations have been previously submitted to the city council on these 

items. 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 6 through 19. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

6. City Council approval of the CAC Minutes from 5/13/2021 Regular Meeting.  Kimberly Thomas 

7. City Council approval to distribute the 2020 Drinking Water Consumer Confidence Report 

(CCR) in customer bills.  Scott Schultz 

8. City Council approval of Invoice # 96-74415 in the amount of $28,382.74 and Invoice # 96-

73928 in the amount of $28,367.29 to Cummins Southeast for a total amount of $56,750.03 for 

purchase of generators as part of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Federally-

Funded Subaward and Grant Agreement # H0297 / Project Number 4337-217-R, for 

$537,018.75, for Utility Mitigation and Generator Project to install generators on 17 of the City's 

lift stations.  Note:  When you factor in the 75% funding from HMGP, the actual budgetary 

impact will be $109,692.90.  Staff has requested an advance from HMGP in the amount of 

$333,578.20 but due to lead times the generator orders need to be placed prior to receipt.  Scott 

Schultz 

9. City Council review and approval of Resolution R-01-2021, Adoption of Affirmative Action 

Plan / Equal Employment Opportunity Policy. Michael Daniels 

10. City Council review and approval of Resolution R-02-2021, Adoption of Anti-Displacement and 

Relocation Policy. Michael Daniels 

11. City Council review and approval of Resolution R-03-2021, Adoption of Separate Procurement 

Requirements for CDBG Grants. Michael Daniels 

12. City Council review and approval of Resolution R-04-2021, Citizen Participation 

Policy. Michael Daniels 

13. City Council review and approval of Resolution R-05-2021, 2025 Comprehensive Plan to be 

adopted as Community Development Plan. Michael Daniels 

14. City Council review and approval of Resolution R-06-2021, Citizen Complaint and Grievance 

Policy. Michael Daniels 

15. City Council review and approval of Resolution R-07-2021, Prohibition on Excessive Use of 

Force Policy. Michael Daniels 

Page 113

Item #5.



June 01, 2021 Minutes Page 4 of 6 

 

 

16. City Council approval of a modification of Professional Services Agreement between 

Geographic Technologies Group (GTG) and the City of Green Cove Springs to develop a 

comprehensive online mapping system   Michael Daniels  

17. City Council approval of Minutes from 3/16/2021 Special Session  Erin West 

18. City Council approval of the CAC By-Laws  Steve Kennedy 

19. City Council approval of Sales and Service Order 3792 in the amount of $31,595.90 to The 

Scarlett Group for Microsoft Office 365 Email and Software Licensing.  Angel Alicea 

COUNCIL BUSINESS 

20. FMPA - June 2021 Bob Page 

Mr. Page gave an overview of June and discussion followed. 

Motion to allow Bob Page to vote no on the debt extension at this time. 

Motion made by Council Member Royal, Seconded by Council Member Kelley. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

21. City Council approval of lease agreement with AMIkids Clay County, Inc. to lease a portion of 

the August Savage Arts and Community Center (ASACC) Classroom Building. Mike Null 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null speaks and explains the item. 

Council discussion follows. 

Motion to approve the lease agreement with AMIkids Clay County, Inc. and authorize the 

Mayor to execute same with adding a HVAC maintenance agreement after the first 7.5 

term. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

22. City Council Approval to Award Bid 2021-05 to KBT Contracting Corp. in the amount of 

$460,030.00 for renovation of the ASACC Classroom Building, Rooms # 1, 2, 3, 4, 11 and the 

gang restrooms.  Mike Null 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null speaks and explains the item. 

Motion to approve award of Bid 2021-05 to KBT Contracting Corp. in the amount of 

$460,030.00 for renovation of the ASACC Classroom Building Rooms #1, 2, 3, 4, 11 and the 

gang restrooms plus additive alternat #1.  Authorize the Mayor to execute the City’s 

standard construction contract with KBT. 

Motion made by Council Member Royal, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

Page 114

Item #5.



June 01, 2021 Minutes Page 5 of 6 

 

 

23. First reading of Ordinance No. O-13-2021, an Ordinance authorizing staff to refinance in an 

amount not to exceed $9,800,000.00 a prior City loan for Electric Infrastructure.  Jim Arnold 

City Attorney Arnold reads Ordinance No. O-13-2021 by title and speaks about the ordinance. 

Finance Director, Marlena Guthrie speaks about the ordinance and advises there will be a 

savings of $920,000.00. 

Motion to approve on first reading Ordinance No. O-13-2021, an ordinance authorizing 

staff to refinance in an amount not to exceed $9,800,000.00, a prior City loan for Electric 

Infrastructure. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

24. Award of Loan Provider and Loan Option in an amount of not-to-exceed $9,800,000 for the 

refunding of Electric Utility Revenue Note, Series 2018  Marlena Guthrie 

Finance Director, Marlena Guthrie speaks and explains the item. 

PFM Rep Jeremy Niedfeldt speaks to the Council concerning the loan refinance. 

Motion to award a Loan Provider and Loan option in an amount not to exceed $9,800,000 

for the refunding of Electric Utility Revenue Note, Series 2018. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Council Member Butler. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

25. City Council discussion and direction regarding reduction of automobile insurance requirements 

for Solid Waste C&D franchise haulers.  Mike Null 

Assistant City Manager, Mike Null speaks and explains this item. 

Council discussion followed. 

Motion to approve staff drafting an ordinance with the reduction of the vehicle insurance 

for C&D Haulers from $1,000,000.00 to $300,000.00 in automobile liability coverage and 

cleaning up the wording of the ordinance. 

Motion made by Council Member Kelley, Seconded by Vice Mayor Johnson. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Gaw, Vice Mayor Johnson, Council Member Butler, Council Member 

Kelley, Council Member Royal 

 

26. City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports. 

The City Manager and City Attorney made comments regarding various city activities, events, 

operations, and projects. 

27. City Council Reports and/or Correspondence. 

The City Council made comments regarding various city activities, events, operations, and 

projects. 

 

Page 115

Item #5.



June 01, 2021 Minutes Page 6 of 6 

 

 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the City Council, the meeting was adjourned at 9:07 

p.m. 

 

 CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
 

 Edward R. Gaw, Mayor 

  

Attest:  

 
 

Erin West, City Clerk  

 

Page 116

Item #5.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Meeting MEETING DATE: July 20, 2021 

FROM: Scott Schultz, Asst. Water Utilities Director 

SUBJECT: City Council approval to issue a purchase order in the amount of $79,350.00 to Gresco for 

the purchase of 4/0 copper wire for the Magnolia Point Third Feed Project, Magnolia Point 

Underground Reconductor Project and for Inventory. Scott Schultz 
 

BACKGROUND 

As part of the Magnolia Point Third Feed Project, the electric department plans to replace the overhead 

lines on Harbor Road with underground lines that run across the back of the Harbor Road WWTP 

facility.  One 1,000-ft roll of 4/0 copper wire is needed for the neutral on this project.  Twelve rolls are 

needed for the Magnolia Point Underground Reconductor Project which is expected to begin in 

September 2021.  We also need two rolls for inventory stock. 

Due to the unstable nature of commodities pricing, short-term quote guarantees and increasing lead 

times, staff reached out to four vendors for quotes for the material; Anixter, AWG, Gresco and Irby.  

Anixter has the FMPA bid for this item, but failed to confirm pricing and lead times.  Irby did not 

respond.  AWG quoted $5.66 per foot.  Gresco returned the lowest quote at $5.29 per foot. 

Due to the reasons listed above, staff felt it was prudent to order the materials immediately and request 

that Council ratify this purchase at the July 20 meeting.  As the purchase is over $25,000, it requires 

City Council approval.  Staff recommends awarding the purchase of 15,000 feet of copper wire to 

Gresco in the amount of $79,350.00.   

Additionally, staff is requesting the Council waive the formal bid process for this item given the 

likelihood that the formal bid process would increase the cost and delay the projects.  This exception is 

allowed in Chapter 5 of the City’s Purchasing Policies and Procedures Manual adopted by Council in 

2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

$79,350 to the Electric Department CIP account number 401-3032-5006510 and inventory accounts. 

RECOMMENDATION 

Ratify purchase order in the amount of $79,350.00 to Gresco for 15,000 feet of 4/0 copper wire. 
 

Page 117

Item #6.



Page 118

Item #6.



Page 119

Item #6.



Page 120

Item #6.



Page 121

Item #6.



Page 122

Item #6.



Page 123

Item #6.



Page 124

Item #6.



Page 125

Item #6.



Page 126

Item #6.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  Regular Session MEETING DATE: July 20, 2021 

FROM: Marlena Guthrie, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Establish Tentative Millage Rate for Fiscal Year 2021/2022. 
 

BACKGROUND 

The Form 420 provided by the Property Appraiser (copy attached) reflects an actual property tax 

valuation of $556,461,965 for next year, an increase of $29,432,393 from the prior year’s final taxable 

value of $527,029,572 which is an increase of 5.58%.  The increase is reflected at 100% and has not 

been discounted to 97%. 

The Administration has included a 3.8000 millage rate in the proposed budget which is the same millage 

rate for FY 2021.  Three schedules are attached for your reference.  One is titled Millage Dynamics, 

another Ad Valorem Revenue FY 2022, and the third Property Taxes FY 2022.  They demonstrate 

among other things, the impact the ad valorem tax has on homeowners using various millage rates.  In 

addition to Form 420, we included Form 420MM-P (Maximum Millage Levy Calculation-Preliminary 

Disclosure).  The 3.8000 rate will require a two-thirds vote by Council and would generate $2,114,555, 

but when discounted to 97% is $2,051,119 as shown in the proposed budget released to Council on July 

15, 2021.  It must also be noted that the impact from the Council’s decision to implement additional 

exemptions for seniors are included in these figures.  The impact is minimal, but this does reflect in this 

year’s exemptions.   

The millage rate set at tonight’s meeting will be certified to the respective parties and will be used on the 

TRIM notices that will be mailed to taxpayers in August, 2021 by the Clay County Property Appraiser’s 

office notifying them of the proposed millage and the hearing dates.  If Council sets a millage rate at the 

final budget hearing that is greater than the vote set at this meeting, then new TRIM notices will have to 

be mailed at the City’s expense.  Council may decrease the millage rate prior to the final hearing without 

having to send out notices.  Council needs to set September 7 and September 21 as the tentative and 

final hearing dates to hear comments from the public on the proposed millage rates, operating budget 

and capital improvement plan and these are the dates that will be reported to the Property Appraiser and 

Department of Revenue.  For Green Cove Springs, these dates fall on regular Council meeting dates.  

The City cannot hold its hearings the same dates as the School Board or the County.  Their dates are set 

as July 27 and September 9 for the School Board and September 14 and September 28 for the County.  

In order to comply with advertising and other TRIM requirements, the City’s first public hearing needs 

to be held on September 7 and the final hearing on September 21. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

RECOMMENDATION 

Page 127

Item #7.



1)  Council approval of __________as the tentative millage rate for fiscal year 2021/2022. 

2)  Set September 7 at 7:00 pm as the first public hearing on the millage, budget, and CIP. 

3)  Set September 21 at 7:00 pm as the second and final hearing on the millage, budget and 

CIP. 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 128

Item #7.



MILLAGE DYNAMICS FY 2022

FY 22 FY 22 FY 21 % Change

Millage Current Year Gross Discount Current Year FY 21 / FY 22

Rate Taxable Value Proceeds Proceeds Proceeds Inc/Dec Proceeds

2.5700 $556,461,965 $1,430,107 $1,387,204 $1,968,056 -$580,852 -29.51%

2.9821 $556,461,965 $1,659,425 $1,609,642 $1,968,056 -$358,414 -18.21%

3.0000 $556,461,965 $1,669,386 $1,619,304 $1,968,056 -$348,752 -17.72%

3.1000 $556,461,965 $1,725,032 $1,673,281 $1,968,056 -$294,775 -14.98%

3.2000 $556,461,965 $1,780,678 $1,727,258 $1,968,056 -$240,798 -12.24%

3.3000 $556,461,965 $1,836,324 $1,781,235 $1,968,056 -$186,821 -9.49%

3.4000 $556,461,965 $1,891,971 $1,835,212 $1,968,056 -$132,844 -6.75%

3.4000 $556,461,965 $1,891,971 $1,835,212 $1,968,056 -$132,844 -6.75%

3.5000 $556,461,965 $1,947,617 $1,889,188 $1,968,056 -$78,868 -4.01%

3.6000 $556,461,965 $2,003,263 $1,943,165 $1,968,056 -$24,891 -1.26%

3.6711 $556,461,965 $2,042,828 $1,981,543 $1,968,056 $13,487 0.69%

3.6958 $556,461,965 $2,056,572 $1,994,875 $1,968,056 $26,819 1.36%

3.7000 $556,461,965 $2,058,909 $1,997,142 $1,968,056 $29,086 1.48%

3.8000 $556,461,965 $2,114,555 $2,051,119 $1,968,056 $83,063 4.22%

3.8595 $556,461,965 $2,147,665 $2,083,235 $1,968,056 $115,179 5.85%

3.9000 $556,461,965 $2,170,202 $2,105,096 $1,968,056 $137,040 6.96%

4.0000 $556,461,965 $2,225,848 $2,159,072 $1,968,056 $191,016 9.71%

4.1000 $556,461,965 $2,281,494 $2,213,049 $1,968,056 $244,993 12.45%

4.2000 $556,461,965 $2,337,140 $2,267,026 $1,968,056 $298,970 15.19%

4.2455 $556,461,965 $2,362,459 $2,291,585 $1,968,056 $323,529 16.44%

7/14/2021
Page 129

Item #7.



PROPERTY TAXES

FY  2021/2022
% FULL MILL DISCOUNT MILL

FISCAL ALLOWABLE TAX TAX INCREASE GENERATES GENERATES

YEAR VALUATION RATE REVENUE DECREASE REVENUE OF REVENUE OF

NOTES

21-22 556,461,965 3.6000 2,003,263 0.00% 556,462 539,768

21-22 556,461,965 3.6711 2,042,828 0.00% 556,462 539,768

21-22 556,461,965 3.6958 2,056,572 0.00% 556,462 539,768

21-22 556,461,965 3.8000 2,114,555 5.29% 556,462 539,768

20-21 528,479,105 3.8000 2,008,221 10.11% 528,479 512,625

19-20 479,957,037 3.8000 1,823,837 7.52% 479,957 465,558

18-19 446,401,768 3.6000 1,607,046 12.18% 446,402 433,010

17-18 397,937,669 3.6000 1,432,576 7.51% 397,938 386,000

16-17 370,129,769 3.6000 1,332,467 7.47% 370,130 359,026

15-16 344,409,056 3.6000 1,239,873 2.76% 344,409 330,633

14-15 335,144,554 3.6000 1,206,520 2.71% 335,145 321,739

13-14 326,309,541 2.9821 973,088 1.10% 326,310 313,257

12-13 322,753,032 2.9821 962,482 -1.86% 322,753 309,843

11-12 328,878,819 2.57 845,219 -3.63% 328,879 315,724

10-11 341,263,287 2.57 877,047 -13.17% 341,263 327,613

09-10 393,027,132 2.57 1,010,080 -4.61% 393,027 377,306

08-09 412,042,547 2.57 1,058,949 -4.31% 412,043 395,561

07-08 430,607,760 2.57 1,107,738 19.24% 430,608 413,383

06-07 361,114,263 2.6 938,897 24.28% 361,114 346,670

05-06 290,574,614 2.611 758,690 16.13% 290,575 278,952

04-05 250,211,641 2.611 653,303 14.00% 250,212 240,203

03-04 219,477,813 2.611 573,057 8.56% 219,478 210,699

02-03 202,171,828 2.611 527,871 7.51% 202,172 194,085

01-02 188,055,215 2.611 491,012 9.09% 188,055 180,533

00-01 172,384,030 2.611 450,095 2.99% 172,384 165,489

99-00 167,385,139 2.611 437,043 9.57% 167,385 160,690

98-99 152,768,239 2.611 398,878 3.22% 152,768 146,658

97-98 148,001,801 2.611 386,433 5.94% 148,002 142,082

96-97 139,701,423 2.611 364,760 0.85% 139,701 134,113

95-96 138,525,257 2.611 361,689 12.76% 138,525 132,984

94-95 122,848,818 2.611 320,758 3.02% 122,849 117,935

93-94 119,247,862 2.611 311,356 3.34% 119,248 114,478

92-93 115,397,761 2.611 301,304 10.90% 115,398 110,782

91-92 104,052,988 2.611 271,682  

TAXABLE VALUES OF HOMES (thousands)

(after $50K exemption)
MILLAGE $25 $50 $75 $100 $125 $150 $200 $225 $300

RATE TAX DUE TAX DUE TAX DUE TAX DUE TAX DUE TAX DUE TAX DUE TAX DUE TAX DUE

(ROUNDED) (ROUNDED) (ROUNDED)(ROUNDED) (ROUNDED) (ROUNDED) (ROUNDED) (ROUNDED) (ROUNDED)

2.5700 64 129 193 257 321 386 514 578 771 Prior Year Rate

2.6000 65 130 195 260 325 390 520 585 780

2.7000 68 135 203 270 338 405 540 608 810

2.8000 70 140 210 280 350 420 560 630 840

2.9000 73 145 218 290 363 435 580 653 870

2.9821 75 149 224 298 373 447 596 671 895 Prior Year Rate

3.0000 75 150 225 300 375 450 600 675 900

3.1000 78 155 233 310 388 465 620 698 930

3.2000 80 160 240 320 400 480 640 720 960

3.3000 83 165 248 330 413 495 660 743 990

3.3500 84 168 251 335 419 503 670 754 1,005

3.4000 85 170 255 340 425 510 680 765 1,020

3.5000 88 175 263 350 438 525 700 788 1,050

3.6000 90 180 270 360 450 540 720 810 1,080 Prior Year Rate

3.6711 92 184 275 367 459 551 734 826 1,101 Millage Rate with same as CY Revenues

3.6958 92 185 277 370 462 554 739 832 1,109

Rolled Back Rate & CY Adjusted Rolled 

Back Rate

3.7000 93 185 278 370 463 555 740 833 1,110

3.8000 95 190 285 380 475 570 760 855 1,140 Proposed Millage Rate in Budget

3.8595 96 193 289 386 482 579 772 868 1,158 CY Adjusted Rolled Back Rate X 1.0443

3.9000 98 195 293 390 488 585 780 878 1,170

4.0000 100 200 300 400 500 600 800 900 1,200

4.1000 103 205 308 410 513 615 820 923 1,230

4.2000 105 210 315 420 525 630 840 945 1,260

4.2455 106 212 318 425 531 637 849 955 1,274 Maximum Millage Rate: 3.8595  X 1.10%

Millage Comparison Year to Year 2022 10:02 AM7/14/2021Page 130

Item #7.



CERTIFICATION OF TAXABLE VALUE
DR-420 
R. 5/12 

Rule 12D-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 11/12 
 

Year : County :

Principal Authority : Taxing Authority :

SECTION I :    COMPLETED BY PROPERTY APPRAISER
1. Current year taxable value of real property for operating purposes $ (1)

2. Current year taxable value of personal property for operating purposes $ (2)

3. (3)Current year taxable value of centrally assessed property for operating purposes $

4. (4)Current year gross taxable value for operating purposes  (Line 1 plus Line 2 plus Line 3) $

5. (5)
Current year net new taxable value  (Add new construction, additions, rehabilitative 
improvements increasing assessed value by at least 100%, annexations, and tangible 
personal property value over 115% of the previous year's value. Subtract deletions.)

$

6. (6)Current year adjusted taxable value  (Line 4 minus Line 5) $

7. (7)$Prior year FINAL gross taxable value  from prior year applicable Form DR-403 series

8. (8)Does the taxing authority include tax increment financing areas? If yes, enter number 
of  worksheets (DR-420TIF) attached.  If none, enter 0

Number

9. (9)
NumberDoes the taxing authority levy a voted debt service millage or a millage voted for 2 

years or less under s. 9(b), Article VII, State Constitution? If yes, enter the number of  
DR-420DEBT, Certification of Voted Debt Millage forms attached. If none, enter 0

  
SIGN 
HERE

Property Appraiser Certification         I certify the taxable values above are correct to the best of my knowledge.

Date :

SECTION II  :    COMPLETED BY TAXING AUTHORITY
If this portion of the form is not completed in FULL your taxing authority will be denied TRIM certification and 

possibly lose its millage levy privilege for the tax year. If any line is not applicable, enter  -0-.

10. Prior year operating millage levy (If prior year millage was adjusted then use adjusted 
millage from Form DR-422)   (10)per $1,000

11. (11)Prior year ad valorem proceeds  (Line 7 multiplied by Line 10, divided by 1,000) $

12. (12)$Amount, if any, paid or applied in prior year as a consequence of an obligation measured by a 
dedicated increment value  (Sum of either Lines 6c or Line 7a for all DR-420TIF forms)

13.

14.

(13)

(14)

Adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds  (Line 11 minus Line 12) $

$Dedicated increment value, if any  (Sum of either Line 6b or Line 7e for all DR-420TIF forms)

15. (15)$Adjusted current year taxable value  (Line 6 minus Line 14)

16. Current year rolled-back rate   (Line 13 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,000)   per $1000 (16)

17. (17)per $1000Current year proposed operating millage rate

18. (18) 
 

 
$

Total taxes to be levied at proposed millage rate   (Line 17 multiplied by Line 4, divided 
by 1,000)

Continued on page 2

YES   NO

 YES   NO

Signature of Property Appraiser:

2,114,555

0

527,029,572

3.6958

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

3.8000

53,299,312

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

7/1/2021 12:30 PM

502,353,089

541,892,986

Reset Form

0

0

809,564

556,461,965

2,002,712

14,568,979

Electronically Certified by Property Appraiser

CLAY

✔

3.8000

✔

2021

541,892,986

0

Print Form

2,002,712

Page 131

Item #7.



DR-420 
R.  5/12 
Page 2 

19. TYPE of principal authority (check one)
County Independent Special District

(19)
Municipality Water Management District

(20)20.
Applicable taxing authority (check one) Principal Authority Dependent Special District

MSTU Water Management District Basin

21. (21)Is millage levied in more than one county? (check one) Yes No

               DEPENDENT SPECIAL DISTRICTS AND MSTUs                   STOP HERE - SIGN AND SUBMIT

22. 
 (22)$

Enter the total adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds of the principal authority, all 
dependent special districts, and MSTUs levying a millage.   (The sum of Line 13 from all DR-420 
forms)

23. Current year aggregate rolled-back rate (Line 22 divided by Line 15, multiplied by 1,000) (23)per $1,000

24. (24)$Current year aggregate rolled-back taxes (Line 4 multiplied by Line 23, divided by 1,000)

25. (25)$
Enter total of all operating ad valorem taxes proposed to be levied by the principal 
taxing authority, all dependent districts, and MSTUs, if any. (The sum of Line 18 from all 
DR-420 forms)

(26)Current year proposed aggregate millage rate (Line 25 divided by Line 4, multiplied  
by 1,000)

per $1,000

(27)Current year proposed rate as a percent change of rolled-back rate (Line 26 divided by 
Line 23, minus 1, multiplied by 100)

%

  
S 
I 
G 
N 
  

H 
E 
R 
E

   Taxing Authority Certification
I certify the millages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge. 
The millages comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of 
either s. 200.071 or s. 200.081, F.S. 

Date :

Title : Contact Name and Contact Title :

Mailing Address : Physical Address :

City, State, Zip : Phone Number : Fax Number :

Instructions on page 3

First public 
budget hearing

Date : Time : Place :

27.

26.

Signature of Chief Administrative Officer :

2,114,555

✔

904-284-2718

2,002,712

904-297-7500, ext. 3309

✔

321 WALNUT STREET321 WALNUT ST

✔

2,056,572

GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043

3.6958

Steve Kennedy, City Manager

2.82

Marlena Guthrie, CPA, Finance Director

3.8000

Page 132

Item #7.



DR-420 
R.  5/12 
Page 3 

CERTIFICATION OF TAXABLE VALUE  
INSTRUCTIONS

“Principal Authority” is a county, municipality, or independent special district (including water management districts). 

“Taxing Authority” is the entity levying the millage. This includes the principal authority, any special district dependent to the 
principal authority, any county municipal service taxing unit (MSTU), and water management district basins. 

Each taxing authority must submit to their property appraiser a DR-420 and the following forms, as applicable: 

· DR-420TIF, Tax Increment Adjustment Worksheet 
· DR-420DEBT, Certification of Voted Debt Millage 
· DR-420MM-P, Maximum Millage Levy Calculation - Preliminary Disclosure

Section I: Property Appraiser  

Use this DR-420 form for all taxing authorities except school 
districts. Complete Section I, Lines 1 through 9, for each county, 
municipality, independent special district, dependent special 
district, MSTU, and multicounty taxing authority. Enter only 
taxable values that apply to the taxing authority indicated. Use a 
separate form for the principal authority and each dependent 
district, MSTU and water management district basin. 

Line 8 

Complete a  DR-420TIF for each taxing authority making 
payments to a redevelopment trust fund under Section 163.387
(2)(a), Florida Statutes or by an ordinance, resolution or 
agreement to fund a project or to finance essential infrastructure. 

Check "Yes" if the taxing authority makes payments to a 
redevelopment trust fund. Enter the number of DR-420TIF forms 
attached for the taxing authority on Line 8. Enter 0 if none. 

Line 9 

Complete a DR-420DEBT for each taxing authority levying either 
a voted debt service millage (s.12, Article VII, State Constitution) 
or a levy voted for two years or less (s. 9(b), Article VII, State 
Constitution). 

Check “Yes” if the taxing authority levies either a voted debt 
service millage or a levy voted for 2 years or less (s. 9(b), Article 
VII, State Constitution). These levies do not include levies 
approved by a voter referendum not required by the State 
Constitution. Complete and attach DR-420DEBT. Do not 
complete a separate DR-420 for these levies. 

Send a copy to each taxing authority and keep a copy. When the 
taxing authority returns the DR-420 and the accompanying forms, 
immediately send the original to: 

Florida Department of Revenue 
Property Tax Oversight  - TRIM Section 
P. O.  Box 3000 

           Tallahassee, Florida 32315-3000

Section II: Taxing Authority  

Complete Section II. Keep one copy, return the original and 
one copy to your property appraiser with the applicable 
DR-420TIF, DR-420DEBT, and DR-420MM-P within 35 days 
of certification. Send one copy to the tax collector. “Dependent 
special district” (ss. 200.001(8)(d) and 189.403(2), F.S.) 
means a special district that meets at least one of the 
following criteria: 

 l The membership of its governing body is identical to that of 
the governing body of a single county or a single 
municipality. 

 l  All members of its governing body are appointed by the 
governing body of a single county or a single 
municipality. 

 l  During their unexpired terms, members of the special 
district's governing body are subject to removal at will by 
the governing body of a single county or a single 
municipality.  

 l The district has a budget that requires approval through an 
affirmative vote or can be vetoed by the governing body 
of a single county or a single municipality.  

"Independent special district” (ss. 200.001(8)(e) and 189.403
(3),        F.S.) means a special district that is not a dependent 
special district as defined above. A district that includes more 
than one county is an independent special district unless the 
district lies wholly within the boundaries of a single 
municipality. 

“Non-voted millage” is any millage not defined as a “voted 
millage” in s. 200.001(8)(f), F.S. 

Lines 12 and 14 

Adjust the calculation of the rolled-back rate for tax increment 
values and payment amounts. See the instructions for 
DR-420TIF. On Lines 12 and 14, carry forward values from 
the DR-420TIF forms. 

Line 24 

Include only those levies derived from millage rates.

All TRIM forms for taxing authorities are available on our website at 
http://dor.myflorida.com/dor/property/trim Page 133

Item #7.



MAXIMUM MILLAGE LEVY CALCULATION 
PRELIMINARY DISCLOSURE 

For municipal governments, counties, and special districts

DR-420MM-P 
R. 5/12 

Rule 12D-16.002 
Florida Administrative Code 

Effective 11/12 

Year: County:

Principal Authority : Taxing Authority:

1. (1)Is your taxing authority a municipality or independent special district that has levied  
ad valorem taxes for less than 5 years? Yes No

 IF YES,         STOP HERE.  SIGN AND SUBMIT. You are not subject to a millage limitation.    

2. (2)per $1,000Current year rolled-back rate from Current Year Form DR-420, Line 16

3. Prior year maximum millage rate with a majority vote from 2020  Form DR-420MM, Line 13 per $1,000 (3)

4. (4)per $1,000Prior year operating millage rate from Current Year Form DR-420, Line 10

           If Line 4 is equal to or greater than Line 3, skip to Line 11.   If less, continue to Line 5.

Adjust rolled-back rate based on prior year majority-vote maximum millage rate

5. (5)Prior year final gross taxable value from Current Year Form DR-420, Line 7 $

6. (6)$Prior year maximum ad valorem proceeds with majority vote 
(Line 3 multiplied by Line 5 divided by 1,000)

7. (7)$Amount, if any, paid or applied in prior year as a consequence of an obligation 
measured by a dedicated increment value from Current Year  Form DR-420 Line 12

8. (8)Adjusted prior year ad valorem proceeds with majority vote  (Line 6 minus Line 7) $

9. Adjusted current year taxable value  from Current Year form DR-420 Line 15 $ (9)

10. Adjusted current year rolled-back rate (Line 8 divided by Line 9, multiplied by 1,000) per $1,000 (10)

       Calculate maximum millage levy

11. (11)Rolled-back rate to be used for maximum millage levy calculation   
 (Enter Line 10 if adjusted or else enter Line 2) per $1,000

12. Adjustment for change in per capita Florida personal income (See Line 12  Instructions) (12)

13. Majority vote maximum millage rate allowed (Line 11 multiplied by Line 12) (13)per $1,000

14. Two-thirds vote maximum millage rate allowed (Multiply Line 13 by 1.10) per $1,000 (14)

15. Current year proposed millage rate per $1,000 (15)

16. (16)Minimum vote required to levy proposed millage:    (Check one)      

a.  Majority vote of the governing body:  Check here if Line 15  is less than or equal to Line 13. The maximum millage rate is equal 
to the majority vote maximum rate. Enter Line 13 on Line 17.

b.  Two-thirds vote of governing body:  Check here if Line 15 is less than or equal to Line 14, but greater than Line 13. The   
maximum millage rate is equal to proposed rate. Enter Line 15 on Line 17.

c.  Unanimous vote of the governing body, or 3/4 vote if nine members or more:  Check here if Line 15 is greater than Line 14. 
The maximum millage rate is equal to the proposed rate. Enter Line 15 on Line 17.

d.  Referendum:  The maximum millage rate is equal to the proposed rate. Enter Line 15 on Line 17.

17. The selection on Line 16 allows a maximum millage rate of   
 (Enter rate indicated by choice on Line 16) (17)per $1,000

18. (18)Current year gross taxable value from Current Year Form DR-420, Line 4 $

Continued on page 2

3.8000

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

0

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

0

0

0

Reset Form

1.0443

✔

3.6958

3.7893

✔

CLAY

3.6958

3.8000

0

2021

556,461,965

4.2455

0.0000

3.8595

Print Form

3.8595

Page 134

Item #7.



DR-420MM-P 
R. 5/12 
Page 2

19. Current year proposed taxes (Line 15 multiplied by Line 18, divided by 1,000) (19)$

20. (20)Total taxes levied at the maximum millage rate  (Line 17 multiplied by Line 18, divided 
by 1,000) $

      DEPENDENT SPECIAL  DISTRICTS AND MSTUs       STOP HERE. SIGN AND SUBMIT.

21. Enter the current year proposed taxes of all dependent special districts & MSTUs levying 
a millage .  (The sum of all Lines 19 from each district's Form DR-420MM-P) $ (21)

22. Total current year proposed taxes (Line 19 plus Line 21) (22)$

       Total Maximum Taxes

23. (23)Enter the taxes at the maximum millage of all dependent special districts & MSTUs 
levying a millage (The sum of all Lines 20 from each district's Form DR-420MM-P) $

24. Total taxes at maximum millage rate (Line 20 plus Line 23) (24)$

      Total Maximum Versus Total Taxes Levied

25. Are total current year proposed taxes on Line 22 equal to or less than total taxes at the 
maximum millage rate on Line 24? (Check one) YES   NO (25)

  
S 
I 

G 
N 
  

H 
E 
R 
E

Taxing Authority Certification
I certify the millages and rates are correct to the best of my knowledge. The millages 
comply with the provisions of s. 200.065 and the provisions of either s. 200.071 or s. 
200.081, F.S. 

Signature of Chief Administrative Officer : Date :

Title : Contact Name and Contact Title :

Mailing Address : Physical Address :

City, State, Zip : Phone Number : Fax Number :

Complete and submit this form DR-420MM-P, Maximum Millage Levy Calculation-Preliminary Disclosure, to 
your property appraiser with the form DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value.

Instructions on page 3

Taxing Authority :

0

0

2,114,555

904-284-2718

321 WALNUT ST

GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FL 32043

Steve Kennedy, City Manager

✔

2,114,555

2,147,665

2,147,665

Marlena Guthrie, CPA, Finance Director

CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS

904-297-7500, ext. 3309

321 WALNUT STREET

Page 135

Item #7.



DR-420MM-P 
R. 5/12 
Page 3

MAXIMUM MILLAGE LEVY CALCULATION 
PRELIMINARY DISCLOSURE 

INSTRUCTIONS

General Instructions 
 
Each of the following taxing authorities must 
complete a DR-420MM-P. 
    • County 
    • Municipality 
    • Special district dependent to a county or 

 municipality 
    • County MSTU 
    • Independent special district, including water   
      management districts 
    • Water management district basin 
 
Voting requirements for millages adopted by a 
two-thirds or a unanimous vote are based on the 
full membership of the governing body, not on 
the number of members present at the time of 
the vote. 
 
This form calculates the maximum tax levy for 
2021 allowed under s. 200.065(5), F.S. Counties 
and municipalities, including dependent special 
districts and MSTUs, which adopt a tax levy at the 
final hearing higher than allowed under s. 
200.065, F.S., may be subject to the loss of their 
half-cent sales tax distribution. 
 
DR-420MM-P shows the preliminary maximum 
millages and taxes levied based on your 
proposed adoption vote. Each taxing authority 
must complete, sign, and submit this form to 
their property appraiser with their completed 
DR-420, Certification of Taxable Value. 
  
The vote at the final hearing and the resulting 
maximum may change. After the final hearing, 
each taxing authority will file a final Form 
DR-420MM, Maximum Millage Levy Calculation 
Final Disclosure, with Form DR-487, Certification 
of Compliance, with the Department of Revenue. 
 
Specific tax year references in this form are 
updated each year by the Department.

Line Instructions   
 
Lines 5-10   
Only taxing authorities that levied a 2020 millage rate less 
than their maximum majority vote rate must complete these 
lines.  The adjusted rolled-back rate on Line 10 is the rate 
that would have been levied if the maximum vote rate for 
2020 had been adopted.  If these lines are completed, enter 
the adjusted rate on Line 11.   
 
Line 12 
This line is entered by the Department of Revenue.  The 
same  adjustment factor is used statewide by all taxing 
authorities.  It is based on the change in per capita Florida 
personal income (s. 200.001(8)(i), F.S.),  which Florida Law 
requires  the Office of Economic and Demographic Research 
to report each year.   
  
Lines 13 and 14 
Millage rates are the maximum that could be levied with a 
majority or two-thirds vote of the full membership of the 
governing body. With a unanimous vote of the full 
membership (three-fourths vote of the full membership if 
the governing body has nine or more members) or a 
referendum, the maximum millage rate that can be levied is 
the taxing authority’s statutory or constitutional cap. 
 
Line 16 
Check the box for the minimum vote necessary at the final 
hearing to levy your adopted millage rate.   
 
Line 17 
 Enter the millage rate indicated by the box checked in Line 
16. If the proposed millage rate is equal to or less than the 
majority vote maximum millage rate, enter the majority vote 
maximum. If a two-thirds vote, a unanimous vote, or a 
referendum is required, enter the proposed millage rate. For 
a millage requiring more than a majority vote, the proposed 
millage rate must be entered on Line 17, rather than the 
maximum rate, so that the comparisons on Lines 21 through 
25 are accurate.   

       All TRIM forms for taxing authorities are available on our website at 
     http://floridarevenue.com/property/Pages/Forms.aspx

Page 136

Item #7.



AD VALOREM REVENUE

2022

CURRENT CURRENT CURRENT YR MAX MAX ANYTHING  OVER POTENTIAL FORMER

 MILLAGE RATE YEAR ROLLED BACK ADJUSTED MILLAGE MILLAGE RATE 4.2455 MILLS MILLAGE RATE

RATE ROLL BACK RATE RATE ALLOWED ALLOWED RATE 3.6

 AFTER PER CAPITA INCOME 1.10 TIMES 3.8595

ADJUSTMENT OF 1.0443

(2/3 Vote) (Majority Vote) (Majority Vote) (Majority Vote) (2/3 Vote) (UNANIMOUS ) (Majority Vote) (Majority Vote)

% INC FROM FY 2021

  INCOME OF $1,968,056 4.22% 1.36% 1.36% 5.85% 16.44% 16.44% 1.36% -1.26%

  at 100%

MILLAGE RATES: 3.8000 3.6958 3.6958 3.8595 4.2455 4.2455 3.6958 3.6000
(# 4, DR 420 MMP) (#16 DR 420-PRIOR YEAR) (#11 DR-420MMP) (#13 DR 420MMP) (#14 DR 420MMP) (#14 DR 420MMP) (#11 DR-420MMP)

TAXABLE VALUE $556,461,965 $556,461,965 $556,461,965 $556,461,965 $556,461,965 $556,461,965 $556,461,965 $556,461,965

REV. GENERATED 100% $2,114,555 $2,056,572 $2,056,572 $2,147,665 $2,362,459 $2,362,459 $2,056,572 $2,003,263

(note 1)

REVENUE @ 97% $2,051,119 $1,994,875 $1,994,875 $2,083,235 $2,291,585 $2,291,585 $1,994,875 $1,943,165

ANYTHING OVER   4.2455  MUST BE A UNANIMOUS VOTE

Note 1:  Budgeted at 97%

Page 137

Item #7.



Page 138

Item #7.



Page 139

Item #7.



Page 140

Item #7.



Page 141

Item #7.



Page 142

Item #7.



Page 143

Item #7.



Page 144

Item #7.



Page 145

Item #7.



Page 146

Item #7.



Page 147

Item #7.



Page 148

Item #7.



Page 149

Item #7.



Page 150

Item #7.



Page 151

Item #7.



Page 152

Item #7.



Page 153

Item #7.



Page 154

Item #7.



Page 155

Item #7.



Page 156

Item #7.



Page 157

Item #7.



Page 158

Item #7.



Page 159

Item #7.



Page 160

Item #7.



Page 161

Item #7.



Page 162

Item #7.



Page 163

Item #7.



Page 164

Item #7.



Page 165

Item #7.



Page 166

Item #7.



Page 167

Item #7.



Page 168

Item #7.



Page 169

Item #7.



Page 170

Item #7.



Page 171

Item #7.



Page 172

Item #7.



Page 173

Item #7.



Page 174

Item #7.



Page 175

Item #7.



Page 176

Item #7.



Page 177

Item #7.



Page 178

Item #7.



Page 179

Item #7.



Page 180

Item #7.



Page 181

Item #7.



Page 182

Item #7.



Page 183

Item #7.



Page 184

Item #7.



Page 185

Item #7.



Page 186

Item #7.



Page 187

Item #7.



Page 188

Item #7.



Page 189

Item #7.



Page 190

Item #7.



Page 191

Item #7.



Page 192

Item #7.



Page 193

Item #7.



Page 194

Item #7.



Page 195

Item #7.



Page 196

Item #7.



Page 197

Item #7.



Page 198

Item #7.



Page 199

Item #7.



Page 200

Item #7.



Page 201

Item #7.



Page 202

Item #7.



Page 203

Item #7.



Page 204

Item #7.



Page 205

Item #7.



Page 206

Item #7.



Page 207

Item #7.



Page 208

Item #7.



Page 209

Item #7.



Page 210

Item #7.



Page 211

Item #7.



Page 212

Item #7.



Page 213

Item #7.



Page 214

Item #7.



Page 215

Item #7.



Page 216

Item #7.



Page 217

Item #7.



Page 218

Item #7.



Page 219

Item #7.



Page 220

Item #7.



Page 221

Item #7.



Page 222

Item #7.



Page 223

Item #7.



Page 224

Item #7.



Page 225

Item #7.



Page 226

Item #7.



Page 227

Item #7.



Page 228

Item #7.



Page 229

Item #7.



Page 230

Item #7.



Page 231

Item #7.



Page 232

Item #7.



Page 233

Item #7.



Page 234

Item #7.



Page 235

Item #7.



Page 236

Item #7.



Page 237

Item #7.



Page 238

Item #7.



Page 239

Item #7.



Page 240

Item #7.



Page 241

Item #7.



Page 242

Item #7.



Page 243

Item #7.



Page 244

Item #7.



Page 245

Item #7.



Page 246

Item #7.



Page 247

Item #7.



Page 248

Item #7.



Page 249

Item #7.



Page 250

Item #7.



Page 251

Item #7.



Page 252

Item #7.



Page 253

Item #7.



Page 254

Item #7.



Page 255

Item #7.



Page 256

Item #7.



Page 257

Item #7.



Page 258

Item #7.



Page 259

Item #7.



Page 260

Item #7.



Page 261

Item #7.



Page 262

Item #7.



Page 263

Item #7.



Page 264

Item #7.



Page 265

Item #7.



Page 266

Item #7.



Page 267

Item #7.



Page 268

Item #7.



Page 269

Item #7.



Page 270

Item #7.



Page 271

Item #7.



Page 272

Item #7.



Page 273

Item #7.



Page 274

Item #7.



Page 275

Item #7.



Page 276

Item #7.



Page 277

Item #7.



Page 278

Item #7.



Page 279

Item #7.



Page 280

Item #7.



Page 281

Item #7.



Page 282

Item #7.



Page 283

Item #7.



Page 284

Item #7.



Page 285

Item #7.



Page 286

Item #7.



Page 287

Item #7.



Page 288

Item #7.



Page 289

Item #7.



Page 290

Item #7.



Page 291

Item #7.



Page 292

Item #7.



Page 293

Item #7.



Page 294

Item #7.



Page 295

Item #7.



Page 296

Item #7.



Page 297

Item #7.



Page 298

Item #7.



Page 299

Item #7.



Page 300

Item #7.



Page 301

Item #7.



Page 302

Item #7.



Page 303

Item #7.



Page 304

Item #7.



Page 305

Item #7.



Page 306

Item #7.



Page 307

Item #7.



Page 308

Item #7.



Page 309

Item #7.



Page 310

Item #7.



Page 311

Item #7.



Page 312

Item #7.



Page 313

Item #7.



Page 314

Item #7.



Page 315

Item #7.



Page 316

Item #7.



Page 317

Item #7.



Page 318

Item #7.



Page 319

Item #7.



Page 320

Item #7.



Page 321

Item #7.



Page 322

Item #7.



Page 323

Item #7.



Page 324

Item #7.



Page 325

Item #7.



Page 326

Item #7.



Page 327

Item #7.



Page 328

Item #7.



Page 329

Item #7.



Page 330

Item #7.



Page 331

Item #7.



Page 332

Item #7.



Page 333

Item #7.



Page 334

Item #7.



Page 335

Item #7.



Page 336

Item #7.



Page 337

Item #7.



Page 338

Item #7.



Page 339

Item #7.



Page 340

Item #7.



Page 341

Item #7.



Page 342

Item #7.



Page 343

Item #7.



Page 344

Item #7.



Page 345

Item #7.



Page 346

Item #7.



Page 347

Item #7.



Page 348

Item #7.



Page 349

Item #7.



Page 350

Item #7.



Page 351

Item #7.



Page 352

Item #7.



Page 353

Item #7.



Page 354

Item #7.



Page 355

Item #7.



Page 356

Item #7.



Page 357

Item #7.



Page 358

Item #7.



Page 359

Item #7.



Page 360

Item #7.



Page 361

Item #7.



Page 362

Item #7.



Page 363

Item #7.



Page 364

Item #7.



Page 365

Item #7.



Page 366

Item #7.



Page 367

Item #7.



Page 368

Item #7.



Page 369

Item #7.



Page 370

Item #7.



Page 371

Item #7.



Page 372

Item #7.



Page 373

Item #7.



Page 374

Item #7.



Page 375

Item #7.



Page 376

Item #7.



Page 377

Item #7.



Page 378

Item #7.



Page 379

Item #7.



Page 380

Item #7.



Page 381

Item #7.



Page 382

Item #7.



Page 383

Item #7.



Page 384

Item #7.



Page 385

Item #7.



Page 386

Item #7.



Page 387

Item #7.



Page 388

Item #7.



Page 389

Item #7.



Page 390

Item #7.



Page 391

Item #7.



Page 392

Item #7.



Page 393

Item #7.



 

STAFF REPORT  
CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

TO:  City Council Regular Session MEETING DATE: 07/20/2021 

FROM: Ben Plourd, Code Enforcement  

SUBJECT: Lien Reduction Request For 314 Ruby St.  
 

BACKGROUND 

Previous owner had several repeat violations resulting in six liens on the property. In 2017 Habitat for 

Humanity acquired the property with the liens still attached. Total amount of the six liens was 

$13,830.93. Five of the liens totaling $1,329.93 have been paid by Habitat and included administrative 

costs as well as fees for mowing the lot. The remaining lien, $12,501 is an accumulated daily fine and 

administrative costs of $1,776 for the city clean up of trash and debris.  As of today, all violations have 

been abated and the property is in the process of being developed by Habitat. The development includes 

two new homes and the dedication of a new roadway that runs 60 feet to the east of Ruby Street that cost 

Habitat $8,027.50 in construction and labor fees.  In addition, Habitat has placed a three-year 

maintenance bond on the roadway to maintain the facility (in accordance with City Requirements).  

Habitat is asking that the remaining lien of $12,501 be waived.   

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None 

RECOMMENDATION 

City recommends the request be approved to reduce the lien payment to $1,776 which would cover the 

administrative costs paid by the City for the clean up of trash and debris.   
 

Page 394

Item #8.



Page 1 of 5 

 

Public Works 
Monthly Executive Summary 

June 2021 
 
Street Department 
 
During the month of June, the Street Department has been busy as beavers repairing potholes and 

sinkholes throughout Cove Life.  We had 12.61 inches of rain this month. 

• Clean storm drains City Wide. 

• Setup for Food Truck Friday June 11th. 

• 2 Silt fence inspections.  

• Classroom Renovation. 
 
The Street Department completed 28 additional work orders that pertained to street issues. 
 

Parks Department 
 
During the month of June, the Parks Department mowed, weed-eated, and edged all areas one time 

including the DOT right-of-ways, City Parks, and FCT property.   Additional activities included:  

• Monthly playground equipment inspection and necessary repairs. 

• Clean storm drains City Wide. 

• Cleaned the pool 4 times.  

• Prepared the Park for Food Truck Friday June 11th. 
 

The Parks Department completed 2 additional work orders outside of their normal daily work schedules. 
 

Equipment Maintenance 
 
The Equipment Maintenance Shop, as always, works hard to keep the equipment and vehicles going so 
the city can continue to provide our citizens with the exceptional service they are accustomed to.  
During the month of June, Danny, John and Donald completed 69 work orders.   

 
Tradesworker 
 
During the month of June, 38 work orders were completed.   

 
 

Page 395

Item #9.



Page 2 of 5 

Solid Waste Department 
 
       Cove Life, Litter Cleanup Program & New Services: 

• Picked up everything around the rollout cans including large piles of furniture and trash. 

• Picked up as much loose trash, palm fronds, and sticks as possible on the streets, along the 
R.O.W. and ditches regardless of if it is near a container or not. 

• Delivered 2 trash cans and 2 recycle bins to new customers. 

• Delivered 8 blue recycle bins to current customers. 

• Repaired 6 trash cans.  

• Replaced 8 trash cans. 

• Assisted Clay County with yard removal seven (7) days. 
 
This month, the City collected:   

• 377.07 tons of Class I garbage (6% increase) 

• 15.52 tons of recycling (30% decrease) 

• 137.47 tons of yard waste (2% decrease) 

• Street Sweepings 0 
 
For comparison during May 2020, the City collected: 

• 356.54 tons of Class I garbage  

• 22.36 tons of recycling  

• 140.02 tons of yard waste 
 
 

Water/Wastewater 
 

• W/WW crews/management had personal interaction with several citizens regarding 
water/sewer issues. 

• Contacted all customers on water and irrigation “Highest Users” report that had unusual 
consumption (not usually on report) 

• Staff continues to refine the scope and financials of the consolidated AWWTP, expanded 
reclaimed water system, wastewater collection system improvements and water system capital 
improvements to obtain maximum grant potential, optimize loan conditions and minimize 
impact to customers. 

• W/WW/RW Projects; 
o Design of the improvements to the city’s wastewater treatment system (all phases) is 

complete.  In order to maximize grant opportunities, the initial construction phase was 
split into two pieces, for a total of four phases; 

▪ Phase I is construction of the on-site reclaimed water system (storage tanks, 
high service pumps, electrical) at the existing Harbor Road Facility, and 
rehabilitation of Master Lift Stations #2 and #4.  This phase went out to bid in 
January in two parts – plant reclaimed water improvements & lift station #2 & 
#4.  Construction was completed in June 2020.  The total Phase I cost is 
$6,120,600. Staff received $4,063,425.00 in “Principal Forgiveness” (grant) from 
FDEP (SRF).   

▪ Phase II: 

• Construction of the new 1.25 million gallon per day (MGD) advanced 
wastewater treatment plant (AWWTP) at the Harbor Road site.   
Contractor Mobilized 

 

Page 396

Item #9.



Page 3 of 5 

 
▪ Phase III: 

• A new force main from Lift Station #2 diverting the sewage from the 
South Plant to Harbor Road (all sewage generated in the City will be 
treated at the new Harbor Road AWWTP). 

• Decommissioning and “mothballing” of the South Wastewater 
Treatment Plant.  The permit will remain in place and the plant could be 
re-commissioned at a later date depending on future activities at the 
Reynolds site. 

▪ Phase IV (future – determined by growth) is a second identical 1.25 MGD 
AWWTP built at the Harbor Road site. 

▪ Phase V (future – determined by growth) is a third identical 1.25 MGD AWWTP 
built at the Harbor Road site.   

o Sanitary Sewer Evaluation Survey (SSES) of the Core City wastewater collection system is 
complete, including Mittauer final report.  Staff utilizes this data daily in evaluating 
collection system repairs and requests for sewer connections. 

o Continuing to work with FDOT on utility relocations associated with the First Coast 
Expressway.  

o Updated Water Rate Study complete.  

• Staff and Mittauer have completed a full review of the future capital needs of the water system.  
A comprehensive capital improvement program (CIP) has been developed as part of the Water 
Master Plan.  As in the past, the timing of many of these improvements is driven by future 
activities in Reynolds Industrial Park.  The city has received an FDEP – SRF loan for Planning and 
Engineering of several of the CIP improvements so that as the need for the improvements occur, 
the City is ahead of the game and can apply very quickly to SRF for actual construction dollars as 
“shovel-ready” projects.  The total design project cost is $356,800.00, with a $178,400.00 (50%) 
principal forgiveness (grant), leaving an actual loan of $180,100.00. 

• Reynolds Water System Improvements:  In May 2020 the City awarded construction of the 
upgrades to the system to General Underground.  The system improvements include; 

o New water mains along two primary streets to remedy fire hydrants that are 
inadequate. 

o New 12” water main crossing under SR 16 to replace aging mains that endanger the 
integrity of the road.  This will eliminate four existing crossings. 

o New water main along Red Bay Road to eliminate existing aging and leaking pipes.  In 
addition will remedy fire hydrants that are inadequate. 

o New water main and sewer force main extension from Reynolds Park to and across the 
MOBRO complex.  This extension is designed to supply water, fire protection & sewer 
needs to MOBRO and future developments to the east.    

▪ This project was completed in May of 2021. 

• The City has received grants from the State of Florida Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) 
to install auxiliary generators at 17 sewage lift stations, and install generators / raise 
infrastructure at four additional stations.  The grant funds 75% of the improvements.  This 
project is underway. 

• Continued remediation of malfunctioning or out-of-service hydrants. 

• Operated and maintained the Harbor Rd. and South Wastewater Treatment Plants as well as the 
Harbor Rd. and Reynolds Water Treatment Plants to meet the requirements of Regulatory 
Agencies. 

• Continued to make process control adjustments at the Harbor Rd. and South WWTP in efforts to 
further lower Total Nitrogen and Total Phosphorus levels being discharged to the St. Johns River.  

• Continued landscape maintenance at Water and Wastewater Treatment Facilities as well as lift 
stations. 

Page 397

Item #9.



Page 4 of 5 

• Continued preventative maintenance on all treatment facility generators. 

• Completed 10 new services. 

• Completed 80 water related work orders. 

• Completed 32 sewer related work orders. 

• Responded to 87 utilities locate requests. 

 
 

TOP 10 WATER CUSTOMERS June 2021 
 Largest Largest 
 (By Consumption) (By Dollar Amount) 
Rank CONSUMER  Rank CONSUMER  
 
1  Sheriff’s Department                                                        1            Sheriff’s Department  
2 Kindred Health 2           Garden Highway SE LLC 
3 Garden Highway SE LLC 3           Kindred Health 
4 R C Bannerman Learning Center 4            R C Bannerman Learning Center 
5            Clay High                5            Clay High  
6 Governors Creek #436 6 Governors Creek #436 
7 Clay County Court house 7            Clay County Court House  
8            Donald Clark                                                                        8             Garden Highway SE LLC   
9            Springs Coin Laundry  9             Donald Clark 
10 Garden Highway SE LLC     10           Springs Coin Laundry 
                                                           

 
TOP 10 IRRIGATION CUSTOMERS June 2021 

 Largest Largest 
 (By Consumption) (By Dollar Amount) 
Rank CONSUMER  Rank CONSUMER  
 
1        Magnolia Point Investments         1    Magnolia Point Investments   
2        Clay County Court House    2    Clay County Court House       
3        National Gypsum Company      3    Edgewater Landing HOA of Clay    
4        Edgewater Landing HOA of Clay     4    National Gypsum Company      
5        Vallencourt Construction 5    Vallencourt Construction 
6        Magnolia Point Association     6    Magnolia Point Association 
7        Vystar Credit Union    7    AMH Development Non Res  
8       Sheriff’s Department 8    Vystar Credit Union 
9        Deanna & Dale Foerman 9    Sheriff’s Department                                                                  
10     AMH Development Non Res                                               10    Deanna & Dale Foerman 

 
 

Page 398

Item #9.



Page 5 of 5 

TOP 10 SEWER CUSTOMERS June 2021 
 Largest Largest 
 (By Consumption) (By Dollar Amount) 
Rank CONSUMER  Rank CONSUMER  
 
1 St Johns Landing  1 St. John’s Landing  
2 Sheriff’s Department 2 Sheriff’s Department  
3 Kindred Health  3 Garden Highway SE LLC 
4 Garden Highway SE LLC 4            Kindred Health 
5 R C Bannerman Learning Center  5            R C Bannerman Learning Center                                                                   
6 Clay High 6            Clay High 
7 Governors Creek #436 7 Governors Creek #436 
8    Clay County Court House 8            Clay County Court House  
9            Donald Clark              9            Green Cove Springs Junior High 
10          Springs Coin Laundry 10 Clay Port INC 

 
 

 
Wastewater Plant Capacity Status 

South Plant:  TMDL Capacity 0.350 MGD*,  

• Current Loading 0.288 MGD*, 79% Capacity (May 2021 Annual Average) 

• Current & Committed (.033) Loading 0.321 MGD*, 88% Capacity 

• Current, Committed & Requested (0) Loading 0.321 MGD*, 88% Capacity 
 
Harbor Road:  TMDL Capacity 0.650 MGD* 

• Current Loading 0.517 MGD*, 79% Capacity (May 2021 Annual Average) 

• Current & Committed (.092) Loading 0.609 MGD*, 93% Capacity 

• Current, Committed & Requested (0) Loading 0.604 MGD*, 93% Capacity 
*MGD = Million Gallons per Day       
                          Note:  No Reynolds growth or loading projections included in above. 
 

 

Page 399

Item #9.



 

        ELECTRIC DEPARTMENT             
 

 

Significant activities for the month of June 2021 
 

 

• 11     Streetlights repaired 

•   3     Permanent meters installed 

•   2     Temporary meters installed 

•   1     Meter removed 

•   3     Reverse solar meters installed 

•   4     Poles installed 
•   8     Voltage check 

•   4     Utility Verifications 

 

In addition to the activities listed above, the Electric Department also: 

 

• Conducted daily morning safety meetings. 

• Conducted daily truck inspections. 

• Trimmed limbs and vines from power lines and poles. 

• Unloaded transformers and supplies when they come in. 

• Inspect/locate ROW permits. 

• Conduct warehouse inventory/order supplies. 

• 1501 Palmer St., repaired service drop, tight up at the transformer. 

• 3325 Turkey Creek, replaced hand-hole. 

• 310 N Magnolia Ave., replaced service wire to the house. 

• 808 Oak St., tree limb on service to the house broke streetlight. 

• 459 Brentwood Ct., replaced lid on hand-hole. 

• 1856 Colonial Dr., installed surge suppressor. 

• 4106 S Oakridge Ave., installed three 600AMP disconnect switches. 

• 800 Oak St., removed tree from service wire. 

• 463 Olive Circle, installed hand hole, 4/0 URD and u-guard.  

• 445 Olive Circle, removed yellow guards. 

• 1277 Harbor Rd., assisted plant operators installing pump inside the tank. 

• Chapman Substation, framed 4 concrete poles. 

• 1505 Wayne St., replaced bracket and switch to transformer. 

• 1029-A Bunker Ave., changed out bad transformer. 

 
Page 400

Item #9.

http://www.greencovesprings.com/


During the month of June, the Electric Department responded to 

the following outages: 

 

06/05/2021 – Between 6:00 p.m. – 9:30 p.m., 109 Pine Ave & 700 Palmer St., transformer went bad in 

lightning storm, 5 customers affected. 

06/06/2021 – Between 5:00 a.m. – 6:30 a.m., 201 Park St., burnt jumper and 600 AMP switch, 100 customers 

affected. 

06/08/2021 – Between 2:30 a.m. – 5:00 a.m., West St., tree on the line blown fuse, 20 customers affected. 

06/08/2021 – Between 5:30 a.m. – 7:00 a.m., 3301 Hwy 17 N., blown arrester due to lightning, 1 customer 

affected. 

06/08/2021 – Between 8:38 a.m. – 8:58 a.m., 1525 Walnut St., blown transformer fuse and neutral repaired, 4 

customers affected. 

06/10/2021 – Between 6:25 a.m. – 10:30 a.m., 1541-1567 Ball Rd., replaced transformer bracket switch, 

stirrup, and hot line clamp, 6 customers affected. 

06/14/2021 – Between 9:50 a.m. – 11:44 a.m., 3778 Randall Rd., removed tree down and repaired primary, 6 

customers affected. 

06/15/2021 – Between 7:05 a.m. – 8:30 a.m., 1504 Thomas St., squirrel blown fuse, 3 customers affected. 

06/15/2021 – Between 5:30 p.m. – 7:30 p.m., CR 209 N., tree down on feeder, replaced bracket and cable, 100 

customers affected. 

06/15/2021 – Between 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m., 1408 N Orange Ave., blown transformer fuse, 6 customers 

affected. 

06/22/2021 – Between 8:00 p.m. – 10:15 p.m., 3310 Virginia Ln., tree came down broke service line, 1 

customer affected. 

06/24/2021 – Between 5:58 p.m. – 8:30 p.m., 514 N Cypress Ave., tree came down took out primary wire, 15 

customers affected. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 401

Item #9.



Electric Utility Top Consumption Customers (kwh/meter) for 

June: 

NAME                             SERVICE ADDRESS           KWH                 AMOUNT 

Clay County Jail                                   901 N. Orange Ave.              420,640              $39,479.28 

BD Of County Commissioner            825 N. Orange Ave.              301,600  $28,997.20 

St. Johns Landing            1408 N. Orange Ave.              285,750              $31,196.75 

Kindred Health                                801 Oak St.               210,400              $20,328.80 

Winn Dixie Stores, Inc                        3260 Hwy. 17 N.   206,400              $20,272.80 

National Gypsum Company              1767 Wildwood Rd                      148,160                         $14,497.52 

Clay County Court House                  825 N. Orange Ave.              134,080                         $12,989.36 

Tamko Roofing Products           914 Hall Park Rd.  116,960              $13,557.52 

BD Of Public Instruction                    2025 State Road 16            109,000              $12,847.00 

Garber Realty/GMC                           3340 Highway 17                          108,160                         $10,469.52 

Governors Creek #436                       803 Oak St.                                    102,000                         $10,420.00 

Clay County Driver’s License           477 Houston St.                              89,120              $  9,316.24 

City of Green Cove Springs           1277 Harbor Road                                74,160                        $  6,987.92 

Coral Ridge Foods                               1165 N Orange Ave.     72,240  $  7,034.48   

City of Green Cove Springs           Set Street Lights                              66,392                         $  7,447.90 

VAC-CON             954 Hall Park Rd.                             64,880                         $  6,702.96 

Pegasus Technologies            932 Pilot Dr.      60,240  $  6,397.28 

Clay Port Inc.                                       972 Bulkhead Rd (meter B)            59,640                        $  6,446.68 

BD Of Public Instruction                    801 Center St.                                  58,400                         $  6,362.00 

City of Green Cove Springs               925 S R 16 East South Wwtp         55,840                         $  5,424.48 

Direct TV/AT&T Services Inc.            512 Center St.                                  55,680   $  5,404.56 

BD Of Public Instruction                    1 N Oakridge Ave                  52,560               $  9,317.12 

Ammcon Corp.                                      1503 County Road 315 Ste 201     48,300                         $  5,336.60 

BD Of Public Instruction                    1220 Bonaventure Ave                   45,920                         $  5,229.84 
Page 402

Item #9.



Electric Utility Department Capital Projects: 

Pole top switch replacement 

This project began 09-18-2019 with the installation of switches at Governors Creek for restoration plan if 

isolation of north feeder across Governors Creek Bridge during extreme emergencies. Project is now in the 

inspection and evaluation process involving Chapman 2 extension to Harbor Rd and load transfer of Chapman 1 

to Chapman 2.  

Magnolia Point Reconductor 

This project has been reviewed by our new Electric Director and a local contractor and revised.  The project will 

now focus on a brand new 3-phase backbone “ring” through the development with two feeds.  This ring will be 

constructed as phase 1 utilizing a standing contract to bore in new 6” conduit for the entire ring and utilizing a 

contractor to pull in the new conductor and tie into the existing side feeds along the way.  The re-design is now 

completed by our engineer.  Conduit and conductor for phase I has been ordered.  Work is expected to start in 

July 2021 with completion by Summer 2022.   

 

Chapman Substation upgrade 

Patterson and Dewar is the City’s engineering firm for this project. The transformer is now delivered and set on 

the pad in its permanent location.  Patterson and Dewar have designed the rest of the improvements to the 

substation as well as SCADA to be installed throughout the system.   Design is complete.  The construction was 

awarded to Terry’s Electric. They arrived on site the first week of January 2021 to begin work at the substation. 

The project should be complete in August 2021. 

 

Page 403

Item #9.



 

Chapman 3RD Circuit 

IRBY Construction began September 21, 2020, and the PROJECT IS NOW COMPLETE. 

       

Chapman 1 / Chapman 2 

Express circuit feed project of Chapman 1 to north of Governors Creek (a.k.a. Magnolia Point Third Feed) 

and Chapman 2 extension to Harbor Rd project have been combined to balance future load requirements north 

of Governors Creek and to supply additional restoration procedure options involving electric outages north of 

Governors Creek. Conductor had been installed on Roberts St. for Chapman 1 alternate path. City crews are 

now working on additional new line on south right of way that will enable Reynolds Park load to be transferred 

from Chapman 1 circuit to Chapman 2.  Materials for this portion of the project are being funded by a DEO 

Grant.  PROJECT IS NOW COMPLETE. 

Houston St. re-conductor 

Planning for the reconductoring of Chapman 2 with 477 AAC from Martin Luther King Blvd. to Palmetto Ave. 

has begun. This will support a second circuit extending north of Governors Creek for restoration involving 

Magnolia Point, provide an alternate tie between Chapman 1 and Chapman 2 (was not possible before due to 

conductor size) and support AMMCON, PASS and other future expansion north of Governors Creek.  Materials 

for this project are being funded by a DEO Grant.  PROJECT IS NOW COMPLETE. 

13kV to 23kv Conversion – US17 from Harbor Road to CR 315 

Planning for this project has begun.  This project will continue the Chapman 1 and Chapman 2 circuits north of 

Harbor Road to provide capacity and reliability for existing and future customers north of Governors Creek.  

Materials for this project are being funded by a DEO Grant. 

Governors Creek Hardening Project 

This project will allow the overhead conductor crossing Governors Creek to be placed underground from Grove 

Street to Harbor Road.  This project has been split into two phases: (1) design and permitting and (2) 

construction.  It is being 75% funded by a FEMA HMGP grant.  Phase 1 is complete.  The project is now being 

evaluated by FDEM and FEMA funding for the construction phase.  Once funding is in place and a contract is 

executed, bidding and construction should take approximately 9 months.  This project will also support to 

extension of Chapman 1 and Chapman 2 circuits north of Governors Creek to provide additional capacity and 

reliability for all customers north of Governors Creek. 

Page 404

Item #9.



 

North and South Substation Improvements 

North and South substation sub-station upgrades have begun with directional bore designs completed to install 

URD 23KV feeds to substation transformers eliminating the possibility of catastrophic failure in the event of 

lightning or material failure which could cause conductor to fall into existing bus work.  

 

 

Page 405

Item #9.



  

     City of Green Cove Springs 
(904) 297-7500     321 Walnut Street              Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 
Florida Relay – Dial 7-1-1          www.greencovesprings.com 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

To:  Steve Kennedy, City Manager 
 

From:  Development Services Department 

 
Date:  July 1, 2021 

 
Subject: Monthly Planning, Code Enforcement and Building Report for June, 2021 

 
 

PLANNING 

In June, Indcom Sales & Services opened at 989 Worthington Ave, and Great Faith Cleaning relocated to 

439 North St Ste D. Total Business Tax Revenue for June was $110.  
  
During the month of June, Staff worked on:  

• Annexation, Future Land Use, PUD applications for the Gustafson property, 016515-000-00 
• Preparing for the Business Tax Renewal season which will begin in late July 
• Comprehensive Plan 2045, data gathering  
• Two lot splits – one on Washington Ln and one on Pine Avenue, both for the construction of 

single family homes (4 homes in total) 
• One minor subdivision where three lots are becoming two lots to allow for the construction of 

two single family homes 
 

Revenues for Planning related fees for June were $2,994.15.  

 

CODE ENFORCEMENT  
In June there were 9 new Enforcement complaints filed. Voluntary compliance was achieved for 2 cases 

resulting in case closure. The City received $9,960.02 in Code Enforcement fines for Special Magistrate 

orders previously issued.  For Fiscal Year 2020-2021, Code Enforcement has collected $16,210.02 Code 
Enforcement fines. 

 
BUILDING 

Building permit activity increased from May to June. The total number of building permits issued in June 
was 86 compared to 67 in May. Permit activity for June 2021 increased by 8.9% from June 2020.   

 

Revenues for Building related fees for June were $11,502. 
 

 
 

 

 

Page 406

Item #9.

http://www.greencovesprings.com/


  

2021 PERMIT SUMMARY 

NEW HOUSES June 

MAGNOLIA POINT: 0 

MAGNOLIA WEST: 0 

CORE CITY: 1 

CONDOS: 0 

                                                                              

COMMERCIAL ACTIVITY         June 

BUILDING (NEW) 0 

                                                                           

OTHER PERMIT ACTIVITY June 

ADDITION - COMMERCIAL 2 

ADDITION - RESIDENTIAL 9 

REMODEL - COMMERCIAL 1 

REMODEL - RESIDENTIAL 6 

SCREEN ROOMS: 0 

SHIP PROGRAM: 0 

SIGNS: 0 

POOLS: 1 

RE-ROOFING: 20 

GARAGE/SHED: 0 

OTHER PERMITS: 46 

TOTAL PERMITS ISSUED 86 

Page 407

Item #9.



  

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC

MONTHLY PERMIT ACTIVITY

2019 2020 2021

Page 408

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

 

               CITY OF GREEN COVE SPRINGS 

                      POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

 

 

            Derek S. Asdot, Chief of Police ▪ 1001 Idlewild Avenue ▪ Green Cove Springs, FL 32043 ▪ Main (904) 297-7300 ▪ Fax (904) 284-1436 

 
The following is the official summary of activity conducted by members of the Green Cove Springs Police 
Department for the month of June 2021: 
 
Total # Calls for Service: 805  
Total # Arrests: 22  
Total # Traffic Stops:  332       Total # Citations: 133   % Citations to stops: 40% 
Total # Building and business security checks: 1387 
Total # Police Related Services: 3713 
Response Times:   Priority 1: 4M14sec     Priority 2: 1m01sec    Priority 3: 4M40sec 
Dispatch Phone Communication:   911 calls: 310      Non-Emergency calls:  368   Walk-In: 18 
                        
Marine Enforcement:  Marine enforcement was conducted on the following dates. 
6/4/21:  Hines/Vineyard Boater Skip Day 
6/26/21:  Hines/Patterson  Call out drowning in Black Creek 
 
Red Light Camera Program:  
Video Review: 
Ofc. Gann reviewed 1480 violations, approved 1293  and rejected 125. 
Sgt. Luedtke reviewed 0 violations, approved 0 and rejected 0. 
 
Total violations reviewed for the month: 1480      Approval Rating:  91.18%  
Total hours reviewing video: 18.65 
 
Traffic complaints received/completed: 

# Officers # Times # Traffic # Traffic Complete

Location Issue Assigned Addressed Stops Citations Y/N

1600 Colonial Drive Speeding 4 11 3 3 Y

500 N. Roberts St Speeding 12 Y

Walnut and Highland Speeding 8 21 1 1 Y

Colonial Dr/St. Andrews Speeding 14 28 6 3 Y

**When evaluating traffic complaints, low numbers of stops/citations are a good indication that the issue may not be 
as prevalent as the citizen believes. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 409

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Individual Officer Initiative: 
 

Sergeant Luedtke: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 16   # Citations:  4  # Warnings: 12  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 2 
Calls for Service: 76 Property/Business Checks: 143 
Arrests: 1 
2021000985 Violation of Probation 
Problem Oriented Policing: 

• 501 S. Vermont: A subject living in tent in backyard with no water or electricity. Notified code officer 
• Noticed a bench on pier broken from base. Emailed Connie  

Community Involvement: 
• Participated in mutual aid request ref Orange Crush Festival in Jax Beach 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
• Assisted in UCR 
• Maintain the Sex Offender update  
• I monitor the boat slip pay and ensure there are envelopes for payment 
• Conducted FTO with Ofc. Reichenback 

 

Officer: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops:    # Citations:    # Warnings:   Parking Enf:   Accident Rep: 
Calls for Service:  Property/Business Checks:  
Arrests:  
Problem Oriented Policing: 
Community Involvement: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• This position currently vacant. 
 

Officer: Camp 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 31   # Citations:  15  # Warnings: 16  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 3 
Calls for Service: 80 Property/Business Checks: 144 
Arrests: 4 
2021000984 VOP 
2021000986 VOP 
2021001107 DUI 
2021001113 DUI 
Problem Oriented Policing: 

• Middle turn lane at Ferris/S Orange not cycling the light 
Community Involvement: 

• Presented community member with certificate of appreciation 
• Participated in mutual aid request ref Orange Crush Festival in Jax Beach 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 410

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

 

Sergeant Hess: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 29   # Citations:  12  # Warnings: 17  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 1 
Calls for Service: 53 Property/Business Checks: 298 
Arrests: 0 
Problem Oriented Policing: 
Community Involvement: 

• Volunteered to work for Habitat for Humanity for a day. 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Sgt. Hess is currently on extended medical leave 
 

Officer Morando: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 58   # Citations:  37  # Warnings: 2  Parking Enf:  1 Accident Rep: 2  
Calls for Service: 66 Property/Business Checks: 214 
Arrests: 1 
2021000974 Warrant 
Problem Oriented Policing: 

• 1900 Colonial Drive Speed Enforcement 
Community Involvement: 

• Spoke to a group of kids about what it takes to become a police officer 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Attended Award Committee Meeting 

 
Officer: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 0   # Citations:  0  # Warnings: 0  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 0 
Calls for Service: 0  Property/Business Checks: 0 
Arrests: 0 
Problem Oriented Policing: 
Community Involvement: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• This position currently vacant 

 
Sergeant Perry: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 8   # Citations:  3  # Warnings: 1  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 0 
Calls for Service: 11  Property/Business Checks: 72 
Arrests: 0 
Problem Oriented Policing: 
Community Involvement: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Sgt. Perry just returned from extended medical leave 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 411

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

 

Officer Henderson: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 25   # Citations: 7  # Warnings: 8 Parking Enf: 0 Accident Rep: 1 
Calls for Service: 62 Property/Business Checks: 186 
Arrests: 0 
Problem Oriented Policing: 

• 1149 Idlewild:  Homeowner cut down several trees but has not removed debris. Reported to code 
enforcement 

Community Involvement: 
• Assisted Jax Beach PD with Orange Crush Event 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
 

Officer Newton: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 49   # Citations:  23  # Warnings: 3  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 2 
Calls for Service: 76 Property/Business Checks: 84 
Arrests: 5 
2021-000967 Possession of Controlled Substance without a Prescription 
2021-001018 Violation of Probation 
2021-001020 Aggravated Assault on LEO 
2021-001068 Habitual Traffic Offender 
2021-001102 Simple Battery-DV 
Problem Oriented Policing: 

• None 
Community Involvement: 

• Organized obtaining a gift card from the officers for a local business-person who habitually supports 
the department.   

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
 

Sergeant Graham: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 24  # Citations:  18  # Warnings: 6  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 5 
Calls for Service: 151 Property/Business Checks: 79 
Arrests: 5 
52021000952 VOP 
2021000969 VOP 
2021000976 Possession of a Controlled Substance 
2021001045 Possession of Marijuana 
2021001082 DV Battery 
Problem Oriented Policing: 

• 803 Oak St:  Damaged street-light report went to PW 
Community Involvement: 

• Volunteered to work for Habitat for Humanity for a day 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Sgt. Graham is conducting training with full time Ofc. Schauman 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 412

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

 
 

Officer: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 0   # Citations:  0  # Warnings: 0  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 0 
Calls for Service: 0  Property/Business Checks: 0 
Arrests: 0 
Problem Oriented Policing: 
Community Involvement: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• This position currently vacant 
 

Officer: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
T-Stops: 0  # Citations:  0  # Warnings: 0  Parking Enf:  0 Accident Rep: 0 
Calls for Service: 0  Property/Business Checks: 0 
Arrests: 0 
Problem Oriented Policing: 
Community Involvement: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• This position currently vacant 
 
 
 

 

Officer Babcock and K-9 Grit: 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Traffic Stops: 41  # Citations:  2 # Warnings: 15  Parking Enf: 0  Accidents: 0 
Calls for Service: 46 Property/Business Checks: 186 
Arrests: 3 
2021-001001 Possession less than 20gms (Marijuana) 
2021-001003 VOP 
2021-001044 FTA 
K-9 Activities: 
# Shifts Training: 11  Total Time Spent Training:  33.5 hrs 
# of Apprehensions: 0 
Mutual Aid Calls: 2 
CCSO 103 S Orange Av 
CCSO  Lamont St / N Cypress Av 
# of K-9 Searches:   6         # Finds:     0           # No Finds:      6      
Narcotics Detection Log: 
K-9 Demonstrations: 0 
P.O.P. Project:  

• Worked several patrol shifts without Grit 
• Assisted Det. Carpenter with narcotics investigation 

Community Involvement:  
• At FTF talked with a family about K-9 Grit.  Deployed Grit for family photos. 

Other Significant Accomplishments: 
 

 

 

Page 413

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Part Time Officers: 
 

Officer Gann:  
(Responsible for Red Light Camera Program) 

# Hrs Worked: 124.75 

Arrests: 1 
2021001067  Aggravated Assault Domestic Violence 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Reviewed RLC video and issued citations 
• Worked several patrol shifts 

 

Officer Reese: 
# Hours Worked: 53.5  
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Traffic Stops: 10    # Citations: 1 # Warnings: 0  Parking Enf: 0  Accidents: 0 
Calls for Service: 35 Property/Business Checks: 14 
Arrests: 0 
Community Involvement/ POP: 

• Security at Citizen Advisory Council 
Other Significant Accomplishments:   
 

Officer Hickman: 
# Hours Worked:  51 
Traffic Enforcement:   
#  Traffic Stops: 19   # Citations: 2 # Warnings: 3  Parking Enf: 0  Accidents: 1 
Calls for Service: 24 Property/Business Checks: 16 
Arrests: 0 
Community Involvement/ POP: 

• Security for City Council 
Other Significant Accomplishments:   
 

School Resource Officers: 
 

Officer: Lee (Junior High School) 
Incidents at School:  
Cases Worked:  
2021001087 Felony Warrant 
Safety Issues/Intelligence: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Ofc. Lee has been reassigned to Patrol for summer break 
 

Officer Rulon: (Charles E Bennet Elementary) 

Incidents at School: 
Cases Worked: 
Safety Issues/Intelligence: 
Other Significant Accomplishments: 

• Ofc. Rulon is on 6 weeks of FMLA for birth of child 
 
 

Page 414

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

Officers in Field Training: 
 
Full Time Officer Schauman 
Full Time Officer Schiller 
Part Time Officer Reichenback 
Full Time Officer Mares 
Full Time Officer Milliken 
 

SIGNIFICANT OFFICER ACTIVITY D.E.A. TASK FORCE 
 

Detective: Carpenter 
Green Cove Narcotics Cases: 4 
2019002237 – Ongoing Methamphetamine investigation 
2021001012 -  GCSPD/DEA Crack Cocaine  
2021001119 – GCSPD/DEA Crack Cocaine  
2021-00041 – GCSPD DEA/GCSPD  – Methamphetamine DTO investigation  
DEA Cases: 3 
GCSPD/DEA – Ongoing Methamphetamine investigation.   
DEA/GCSPD – Methamphetamine DTO investigation 
DEA/GCSPD – Heroin/Fentanyl investigation  
Narcotic Investigations/Cases Outside of City/County: 3 
Ongoing GCSPD/DEA Methamphetamine investigation.   
DEA – Methamphetamine DTO investigation 
DEA – Fentanyl, Heroin, Methamphetamine 
Seizures: 
$3,000 cash 
1  Kg Methamphetamine 
2 KG Fentanyl 
10 lbs Marijuana 
3 gr Crack Cocaine 
Significant events: 
0 trash pull 
22+ hours surveillance 
1 jail interview 
0 confidential informant cultivated 
1 JIA Interdiction 
2 search warrants completed 
 

SIGNIFICANT DETECTIVE ACTIVITY 
 

Detective Patterson: 
# Open Cases: 8 

# Cases Cleared by Arrest: 1 
Total # Cleared Cases for Month: 1 
Significant Case Developments: 
2021-000295 Working with Oklahoma and private attorney to resolve case.  
2020-002360 Murder case. Submitted two additional arrest warrants for outstanding subjects  
2019-000029 Suspect was arrested  
Background Investigations: 
 1 Officer Completed   

Page 415

Item #9.



                                                                                                                                                                                GCSPD FORM A-18, REV. 1/2021 
 

0  Officer in Progress   
1  Dispatcher Completed 
0  Dispatcher in Progress  

Significant Accomplishments:  
• Assisted patrol with numerous calls for service 
• Assisted DEA and FBI with in-progress investigations 
• Volunteered to work for Habitat for Humanity for a day 

 

Detective Vineyard: 
# Open Cases: 8   
# Cases Cleared by Arrest: 0   
Total # Cleared Cases for Month: 1 
Significant Case Developments:  
2021-000807    Unfounded and cleared 
2021-000076    Lewd/current invs 
2020000783    Supp/inactivate 
2021000242    3 warrants issued/1 arrest 
2021000295    Transferred to Patterson 
2021000562    DCF closed  
Significant Accomplishments: 

• Assisted patrol division with numerous calls for service 

• Attended 40 hr active shooter instructor training 
• Volunteered to work for Habitat for Humanity for a day 

   

Significant Evidence Custodian Activity 
 

Evidence Technician Barton 
• Barcoded Items:           32 Items 
• Destroyed Items:  9 Items 
• To FDLE:   5 Items 
• Return from FDLE:  3 Items 
• Assisted SAO:   0 cases 
• Returned to Owners:  7 cases 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 416

Item #9.


	Top
	Item #1.	Consider adoption of Resolution No. R-11-2021, a Resolution relating to collection of Solid Waste and Recyclable Material within the Magnolia West Subdivision and related issues, including setting a Public Hearing for Final Proposed Solid Waste Service Assessments.
	Mag West Solid Waste Staff Report for July 20, 2021
	PRR - Solid Waste Assessments_final_07 08 21
	O-04-2016 (Stormwater)

	Item #2.	Consider adoption of Resolution No. R-10-2021, a Resolution estimating the cost of Stormwater Management Services provided by the City, determining certain tax parcels will be benefited thereby and related issues, including setting a Public Hearing for Final Proposed Stormwater Service Assessments.
	Stormwater Staff Report for July 20, 2021
	PRR-Stormwater Service Assessments-final_07 08 21
	O-04-2016 (Stormwater)

	Item #3.	FDOT 2021-2022 Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement
	7.20.2021 - Staff Report - FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance Agreement
	City of Green Cove Springs Exhibit A FY22
	City of Green Cove Springs Amendment FY22
	Resolution No. R-15-2021 - FDOT - Traffic Signal Maint - ARV47 - 2021-2022 Amendment

	Item #4.	Land Dedication For New Roadway Adjacent to Ruby Street
	03.02.2021 - Staff Report - Land Dedication for new roadway
	RUBY ST SURVEYS
	PLANS_ SITE & DRAINAGE
	Maintenance Bond
	Developer Agreement -Roadway Dedication
	RUBY AVENUE ROAD PAYMENT
	Title Search and Warranty Deed

	Item #5.	MINS 5/18/2021, 6/1/2021 REG
	2021-05-18 - Regular Minutes
	2021-06-01 - Regular Minutes

	Item #6.	Purchase 4/0 copper wire for inventory
	Copper 4_0 wire purchase 7-20-21 Staff Report
	Scan_2017_08_07_21_59_29_923
	Scan_2017_08_07_22_00_15_900

	Item #7.	Establish Tentative Millage Rate for Fiscal Year 2021/2022.
	July 20, 2021 Staff Report
	GCS Millage Dynamics Only FY 2022
	Millage Comparison Year to Year 2022
	DR-420
	DR-420MM-P
	Millage rate comparison to budget message 2022
	FY 22 Proposed Budget
	FY 22 Proposed CIP

	Item #8.	Lien Reduction Request for 314 Ruby
	314 Ruby Lien Reduction Staff report 2

	Item #9.	City Manager and City Attorney Reports and/or Correspondence/Executive Summary Reports
	Public Works - June 2021
	Electric Dept - June 2021
	2021 JUNE MONTHLY REPORT Building-CE
	June 2021 Monthly Report - PD

	Bottom

